
Email: committeeservices@horsham.gov.uk
Direct line: 01403 215465

Horsham District Council, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1RL
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded)   Horsham.gov.uk   Chief Executive – Tom Crowley

222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

1

Scrutiny and Overview Committee
Monday, 9th May, 2016 at 6.00 pm
Conference Room, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham

Councillors: Leonard Crosbie (Chairman)
David Coldwell (Vice-Chairman)
Alan Britten
John Chidlow
Paul Clarke
Roger Clarke
Jonathan Dancer
Matthew French
Tony Hogben

Nigel Jupp
Tim Lloyd
Brian O'Connell
David Skipp
Ben Staines
Michael Willett

You are summoned to the meeting to transact the following business

Agenda

Page No.

1.  Apologies for absence
2.  Minutes 1 - 8

To approve as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 14th March 2016

3.  Declarations of Members' Interests
To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Committee

4.  Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Committee or the 
Chief Executive

5.  To receive any replies from Cabinet/Council regarding Scrutiny and 
Overview recommendations

9 - 10

a) Response from the Cabinet Member for Local Economy regarding the 
future parking provision in Horsham 

b) Response from the Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets regarding 
Council Tax collection dates (verbal update)

6.  Business Improvement Working Group 11 - 64

Public Document Pack



 Final Report on the S106 Review
 Notes of the meeting held 12th April 2016

7.  Crime and Disorder Working Group 65 - 68

Notes of the meeting held 18th April 2016

8.  Finance and Performance Working Group
Chairman’s update

9.  Social Inclusion Working Group
Chairman’s update

10.  Health Provision Working Group 69 - 72

Notes of the meeting held 30th March 2016

11.  Feedback from West Sussex Joint Scrutiny Task and Finish Group on 
Housing Provision for Care Leavers
Meetings on 4th and 18th April (verbal update)

12.  To receive any suggestions for the Scrutiny and Overview work 
programme

73 - 76

Work Programme for 2016 attached

13.  Scrutiny and Overview Annual Report 2015/16 77 - 88

14.  Urgent Business
Items not on the agenda which the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion 
should be considered as urgent because of the special circumstances



160314  
Agenda Item 2

1

SCRUTINY & OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
14TH MARCH 2016

Present: Councillors: Leonard Crosbie (Chairman), David Coldwell (Vice-
Chairman) Alan Britten, John Chidlow, Jonathan Dancer, Matthew 
French, Nigel Jupp, David Skipp, Michael Willett 

Apologies: Councillors: Paul Clarke, Roger Clarke, Tony Hogben, Tim Lloyd, 
Brian O’Connell, Ben Staines

 
Officers: Tom Crowley, Chief Executive 

 
Also present: Councillors: Toni Bradnum, Christian Mitchell, Godfrey

Newman, Stuart Ritchie, Tricia Youtan 

SO/56 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 11th January 2016 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

SO/57 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest. 

SO/58 ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE OR THE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There were no announcements. 

SO/59 REPLIES FROM CABINET/COUNCIL REGARDING SCRUTINY AND 
OVERVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were no replies from Cabinet or Council.   
 

SO/60 BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT WORKING GROUP – NOTES OF THE 
MEETINGS HELD 12TH JANUARY, 10TH FEBRUARY AND 8TH MARCH 2016

A Member of the Business Improvement Working Group presented the notes 
of the meetings held on 12th January, 10th February and 8th March 2016.

The main focus for the Working Group was the review of the S106 process. 

The Committee noted the recommendation on page 13 of the agenda which 
related to a new Working Group being established to look at the Council 
investing in its own affordable housing stock. 

At the meeting of the 8th March 2016 the Chairman of the Working Group 
gave a summary of the conclusions of the S106 review and there were a 
number of recommendations listed which the Group would consider at its next 
meeting, along with the draft version of the final report, if approved by the 
Working Group the final report would be presented to the Scrutiny and 
Overview Committee on 9th May 2016.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Scrutiny and Overview Committee
 14th March 2016

 

2

SO/60 Business Improvement Working Group – Notes of the meetings held 12th 
January, 10th February and 8th March 2016 (cont.)

The Committee suggested that following completion of the  S106 review the 
Working Group should review the outcome and progress 12 months later. This 
would be fed back to the Chairman of the Working Group. 

It was also confirmed that all Councillors would be briefed on the planning 
application for new homes and a business park on land north of Horsham and 
this would include briefings on the infrastructure package to be secured 
through the s106 process. 

RESOLVED 

That a new Working Group be established to look into the 
potential for the Council to invest in building and managing 
its own affordable housing stock.

REASON

All new working groups are to be approved by the 
Committee.  

SO/61 CRIME AND DISORDER WORKING GROUP – CHAIRMAN’S UPDATE 

The Committee noted that there had been no further meetings of the Crime 
and Disorder Working Group and the next meeting was on Monday 18th April 
2016. 

RESOLVED

That an update from the Crime and Disorder Working 
Group be received. 

REASON

All updates of Working Group meetings are  to be received 
by the Committee

SO/62 FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP – NOTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD 17TH FEBRUARY 2016 

The Chairman of the Finance and Performance  Working Group presented the 
notes of the meeting held17th February 2016. 

There was some concern at the meeting regarding the CenSus Revenues 
and Benefits performance and the cost that the Council had incurred as a 
result of the audit of benefits payments which revealed for the second year 
that errors had exceeded the permitted tolerances. 

Page 2



Scrutiny and Overview Committee
 14th March 2016

 

3

SO/62 Finance and Performance Working Group – Notes of the meeting held 17th 
February 2016 (cont.) 

As a result of the Group’s concerns the Members had asked for a full 
explanation from Mid Sussex District Council which was the lead authority for 
the Revenues and Benefits service in the CenSus partnership. 

There would be an informal briefing, to which all Members were invited, which 
would be given by the Chief Executive at Mid Sussex District Council, their 
Head of Finance and HR and also the Head of CenSus Revenues and 
Benefits on 22nd March 2016. The Committee suggested that the Cabinet 
Members who represented Horsham on the CenSus Joint Committee, also be 
invited to the briefing. The Chief Executive would contact them. 

The Chairman of the Working  Group clarified that this cost was recouping of 
an overpayment and that the authorities would be asked to pay back money 
which had been paid out in error. 

The Committee agreed that this item should appear on the next agenda for 
the Working Group in order for Members to monitor this. 

Members questioned the impact of Adur District Council exiting the CenSus 
partnership 2017. The Chief Executive explained that the remaining 
authorities were faced with a number of options and a report would be 
brought before Councillors in due course. The Committee suggested that the 
Committee and Working Group be involved in this. 

The Committee also noted the discussions which the Group had at the 
meeting on requests made under the Freedom of Information Act, following 
an email received by a member of the public in relation to the performance 
indicators which were monitored by the Working Group. 

RESOLVED

That the notes of the Finance and Performance Working 
Group meeting held 17th February 2016, be received

REASON
All notes of Working Group meetings are to be received by 
the Committee

SO/63 SOCIAL INCLUSION WORKING GROUP – NOTES OF THE MEETING 
HELD 7TH MARCH 2016

The Chairman of the Social Inclusion Working Group presented the  notes of 
the meeting held 7th March 2016. 

The Working Group heard from the Financial Inclusion and Engagement 
Officer at West Sussex County Council in relation to the causes of 
indebtedness and financial hardship. 

Page 3



Scrutiny and Overview Committee
 14th March 2016

 

4

SO/63 Social Inclusion Working Group – Notes of the meeting held 7th March 2016

Arising from discussions the Working Group suggested that the Council 
review its method of council tax collection, by adopting a more flexible 
approach. A more flexible system would help those residents suffering 
financial hardship by making it easier to pay their bills and therefore avoiding 
debt; in addition it could optimise the efficiency of collection and reduce costs 
to the Council. 

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee agreed with this proposal and made a 
recommendation to the Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets. 

RECOMMENDED TO THE CABINET MEMBER FOR 
FINANCE AND ASSETS 

That the Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets review 
the Council Tax fixed collection date with a view to having 
more flexibility in the system. By engaging with those in 
debt at an early stage rather than simply pursuing them for 
payment would have appositive outcome on the Council by 
reducing costs (e.g. bailiff costs) and potentially reducing 
cases of homelessness.  

SO/64 HEALTH PROVISION WORKING GROUP – NOTES OF THE MEETING 
HELD 25TH JANUARY 2016 AND LETTER TO THE WEST SUSSEX 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SELECT COMMITTEE 

The Chairman of the Health Provision Working Group presented the notes of 
the meeting 25th January 2016. 

The Working Group agreed to write a letter to West Sussex County Council to 
seek its support in action to address the lack of health provision in the District. 
A letter addressed to the Chairman of the WSCC Health and Adult Social 
Care Select Committee (HASC) was presented to the Committee for 
approval. 

The Committee noted that the Chief Executive had already corresponded with 
HASC and circulated a copy of his letter. 

There had previously been meetings with the CCG and NHS England and 
Members were keen to keep pressure on in relation to this issue with the 
support of the County Council. The Chairman of the Working Group had 
already contacted the local MP.    

Once there was a strategy in place the Council could look to gain the support 
of the local GPs. 

Members noted that there was also some parallel working with the Cabinet 
Member for Community and Wellbeing and the Leader in relation to this 
matter. 

Page 4



Scrutiny and Overview Committee
 14th March 2016

 

5

SO/64 Health Provision Working Group – Notes of the meeting held 25th January 
2016 and letter to the West Sussex Health and Adult Social Care Select 
Committee (cont.)

RESOLVED

That the notes of the Health Provision Working Group 
meeting held 29th January 2016, be received

REASON

All notes of Working Group meetings are to be received by 
the Committee
 

SO/65 FEEDBACK FROM WEST SUSSEX JOINT SCRUTINY STEERING GROUP 
AND FROM THE WEST SUSSEX JOINT SCRUTINY TASK AND FINISH 
GROUP ON HOUSING PROVISION FOR CARE LEAVERS

The Chairman of the Committee had attended the  meeting of the West 
Sussex Joint Scrutiny Steering Group, which met twice a year, at which it 
agreed that the West Sussex Joint Scrutiny Task and Finish Group would 
review the housing provision for care leavers. 

Councillor Alan Britten represented Horsham District Council on the Task and 
Finish Group and he provided the Committee with an update following the 
first meeting. 

Ofsted had highlighted many areas which required improvement in relation to 
the education and housing provision, for care leavers. The service was 
considered to have deteriorated. 

The Task and Finish Group, which included representatives from all district 
and boroughs in the County along with the County Council, would be looking 
into whether there was adequate support for young people leaving care. The 
review was due to be completed by the end of April; some Members were 
concerned that this was not adequate time to cover such a wide scope. 

Councillor Britten wished to thank the Community Development and 
Engagement Manager and the Housing Needs Manager, for their help and 
assistance during this review and he would report back on progress at the 
next meeting of the Committee.

The Committee supported the suggestion that this Task and Finish Group be 
responsible for reviewing and monitoring the progress and outcome following 
the completion of this review. Normally any follow up would be carried out by 
the Joint Scrutiny Steering Group. Councillor Britten would report this back to 
the Group. 

It was also important that the outcome of this review was fed into the Scrutiny 
and Overview Committee and then subsequently Council. 

Page 5



Scrutiny and Overview Committee
 14th March 2016

 

6

SO/66 PLANNING APPEALS: BUDGET 2015/16 COSTS TO DATE AND 
CURRENT STATUS OF MAJOR PLANNING APPEALS 

The Chairman of the Committee was concerned about the costs of three 
major planning appeals, which were in addition to the figures reported in the 
performance data for the Finance and Performance Working Group. 

The Committee noted that there were not any decisions at this stage. 

SO/67 TO RECEIVE ANY SUGGESTIONS FOR THE SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW 
WORK PROGRAMME

The Scrutiny and Overview Work Programme was circulated. 

There was one additional suggestion for the work programme raised by the 
Chairman. As a result of all the additional housing in the District he was 
concerned that this would lead to an increase in car ownership and that there 
was no provision for an increase in parking in the town centre. Car parking 
fees were also an important part of the Council’s revenue and needed to be 
safeguarded.  

The Chairman sought support from the Committee to ask the Cabinet 
Member for the Local Economy to produce a report with a strategy for the 
future with consideration to be given to the additional houses, potential car 
parking sites, park and ride and the car parking revenue. The Committee 
suggested that this also include rural car parks. 

The Committee noted that the Cabinet was already looking at a future vision 
and plan for Horsham and parking was also part of this.  

The Committee supported the request that the Cabinet Member for the Local 
Economy produce an overall review of car parking in the District. 

SO/68 CIL REPORT CONSULTEES: ROLE OF THE SCRUTINY & OVERVIEW 
COMMITTEE   

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Draft Charging Schedule 
Consultation and Viability Assessment were now available and the Scrutiny 
and Overview Committee had expressed their wishes to be a consultee in the 
process. Members were awaiting confirmation from the officers on when the 
consultation period would take place, but in the meantime Councillors Crosbie 
and Jupp would begin reading the documents as part of the background work 
for Scrutiny’s official response.  

Page 6



Scrutiny and Overview Committee
 14th March 2016

 

7

SO/69 ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA BUT CONSIDERED URGENT

None.

The meeting finished at 8.09 pm having commenced at 6.00 pm.

CHAIRMAN  

Page 7



Scrutiny and Overview Committee
 14th March 2016

 

8Page 8



Agenda Item 5a

9

Response to Scrutiny and Overview Committee recommendation regarding 
future parking provision to meet the needs of increased housing within the 
district; from the Cabinet Member for Local Economy 

At the Scrutiny and Overview Committee on 14th March the Members approved the 
following request to the Cabinet Member for the Local Economy: 

 Recommendation: 

As a result of all the additional housing in the District he was concerned that 
this would lead to an increase in car ownership and that there was no 
provision for an increase in parking in the town centre. Car parking fees 
were also an important part of the Council’s revenue and needed to be 
safeguarded.

The Chairman sought support from the Committee to ask the Cabinet 
Member for the Local Economy to produce a report with a strategy for the 
future with consideration to be given to the additional houses, potential car 
parking sites, park and ride and the car parking revenue. The Committee 
suggested that this also include rural car parks. 

The Committee noted that the Cabinet was already looking at a future vision 
and plan for Horsham and parking was also part of this.  

Response from the Cabinet member for the Local Economy:

There are a number of pieces of work currently being undertaken which consider the 
future provision/needs for parking spaces within Horsham town, and the rural areas. 
These include:

1. Transport Survey of the town centre 

The Strategic Planning department in conjunction with Parking Services are currently 
undertaking research to inform the emerging Town centre Vison work. This includes 
a traffic and transport study. It is suggested that the result of this work will be 
available during May/June 2016. A key objective of this study will be to identify 
current and future transport needs within the town centre, including recommendation 
for changes and enhancements to the town centre car parks. 

2. Rural car park review

Parking Services are currently reviewing the rural parking provision and 
management arrangements.  Some members recently attended a discussion on rural 
parking to explore possible options. During this exercise it is imperative that we have 
a better understanding of the current user needs within the car parks, so it has been 
agreed that we will be undertaking a detailed user survey of the individual rural car 
parks. This information will then be used to inform the production of a new rural 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5a

10

parking strategy; this will include future provision for all users including; long stay 
parkers, frequent users and infrequent visitors. Once the issues have been 
highlighted an action plan to address the individual needs of the villages will be 
created.

3. Parking Services Strategic Objectives

Within the six strategic objectives for parking services there are two particular 
objectives that focus on the protection of income and future provision needs, these 
are: 

 Analyse and maximise all growth opportunities to improve car park occupancy 
and income generation 

 Future proof parking requirements to meet the needs of all user groups

Each one of these objectives has a number of projects. These projects are all aimed 
to be delivered over the next 3 years. Projects that are related to future provision of 
parking spaces and protection of income include:

 Reviewing long stay car parking arrangements
 Increasing capacity through reconfiguration of existing car park layouts which 

will increase the number of spaces available
 Production of a car parking investment plan to increase the provision of car 

parking provision across Horsham district to meet demand
 Exploration of new parking opportunities
 Review of Season ticket parking and demand
 Occupancy maximization strategy
 Smartpark expansion
 ANPR roll-out

Page 10



Agenda Item 6a

11

Business Improvement Working Group

Final Report on S 106 review

This review was initiated by the members of the Scrutiny & Overview Committee at the 
meeting on 14th September 2015 and suggestions received from members of the public 
with regard to items for the work programme for the year. It was clear from the initial 
S&O meeting that there was a perceived lack of consistency and transparency over the 
last few years with regard to the negotiation and agreement of current S106 agreements 
on major projects.

At the first meeting of the BIWG following the September S&O meeting on 13th October 
2015 the process of reaching a final S106 agreement was outlined by the Development 
Manager. The working Group was then able to agree the Terms of Reference. 

Terms of Reference
 Establish and clarify the existing process with a view to producing a briefing 

suitable for District & Parish Councillors

 Review West of Southwater strategic site as a case study to inform future major 
applications

 Review monitoring process

 Review financial reporting that is made available to District & parish Councillors

 Establish how Local Members can become involved in the process of S106 
negotiation at an appropriate stage

 Be mindful of the impending changes to the process that the introduction of CIL 
would bring

 It was also agreed that additional meetings would be held on a monthly basis so 
that this review could be completed by April 2016

At the S&O meeting of 9th November it was agreed that two further items would 
be added to the Terms of Reference for the review being ;-

 Financial Appraisal of S106 outcomes in relation to affordable homes ratio

 Commission an immediate comparison analysis of S106 agreements supported 
by contributions from officers and a specialist firm of suitably qualified external 
legal advisors

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

12

In order to carry out this review it was essential that members of the working group had 
a clear understanding of the process, the timescales and the implications of 
Government Guidelines (See appendix 1). 

The November meeting focused on clarifying the existing process for the members.  To 
this end the Development Manager presented a schedule “The S106 process” to the 
members of the group outlining the process and timescale from receiving a planning 
application through to the final engrossment of the finalised S106 Agreement.  There 
are two departments involved in this process and it is critical that there is good 
communication between departments and that each department is adequately 
resourced to cope with demand. Any failure in the inter-action between departments 
results in deadlines being missed which effect the statistics which are returned to 
Government who monitor the performance of all councils.

Summary of S106 Legal process
 Brief Instructions received from Case Officer
 Further Instructions/clarifications sort
 Undertaking for costs and proof of title requested from owner.
 Agreement drafted
 Draft sent to case officer and/or housing officer and West Sussex County Council 

for comment/approval
 WSCC will at this stage request its own undertaking for costs and may also insist 

on checking the title.
 Draft amended
 Draft sent to owner for comment
 Usually a process of negotiation in relation to the terms at this stage
 Final agreement circulated for approval
 Engrossments printed and sent for signature
 Engrossments returned and signed and completed in house
 Notification of completion circulated to case officer, local members etc.

Page 12



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

13

PLANNING LEGAL INSTRUCTION SCHEDULE  S106 – PROCESS

TASK RESPONSIBILITY ACTION REQUIRED TIME LINE 

Validation 
of 
application 

Team Leader/
Principal Officer  

Check content of application and validate
Within 2 
working 
days of 
receipt   

Case 
Review 

Team Leader/
Case Officer 
(TL/CO) 

TL/CO  To identify likely recommendation and need 
for s106

Instructions to be checked by Team Leader

Send instructions to Legal Services via paper and or 
email including planning application, location plan, 
committee report (if any) and any other relevant 
information. Instruction memo to have determination 
date on it and details of agent and or solicitor.  

On Day 21  

By date 28 

 

Draft 
s106/
Unilateral 

Legal 
Instructions given to Principal Planning Solicitor who 
will assign matter to lawyer or outsource matter and 
ask Admin to set up new paper file and file on CIVICA 
(case management and time recording system) 

Admin to set up new paper file and CIVICA file and 
send out client care letter to case officer.  

Lawyer  to advise if  information is inadequate within 
two days of receipt of instructions

Lawyer will endeavour to carry out the following tasks 
within three days of receipt of instructions 
Send out initial letter to applicant or agent or solicitor  
notifying of instructions to prepare legal agreement 
and requesting, within 7 days, the following 
information

Page 13



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

14

Case Officer

Office Copy Entries (to ascertain ownership of the site 
and any legal interests in it)
Undertaking for Costs (the Council’s legal, planning 
and monitoring costs must be paid). 

• Contact  by email WSCC legal 
team manager notifying of new 
legal agreement and requesting 
that the matter is allocated to 
lawyer

• Contact by email planning case 
officer confirming that legal 
agreement will be drafted and 
request further information if 
required. 

Draft s106 – send to case officer, solicitor, WSCC and 
any other party.

Response/comments required from solicitor and 
WSCC

Draft s106 to be available by Committee date where 
case is to be considered by committee (if possible). 
Lawyer to advise case officer when committee target 
cannot be met and why.

to review content of draft s106 

  

Within 7 
days of 
receipt of 
draft 
agreement

By 
Committee 
date or day 
40

Within 7 
days of 
receipt of 
draft 106 
from Legal 

Negotiate 
s106/UU

Legal Conduct negotiations and seek agreement of draft, 
plans and conditions

Before 
determination 
date

Page 14



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

15

Draft 
Decision 
Notice  

Case Officer 
Case officer to check all drawings and prepare draft 
decision notice  

Within no 
more that 
10 days of 
recommend
ation/ 
resolution to 
grant 
planning 
permission 

Final S106 
Unilateral 

Legal 
Legal to get s106/Unilateral engrossed and signed by 
all parties and costs paid within the statutory time 
period unless otherwise agreed. Seek extension of 
time if date is due to expire. 

Within 
8/13/16 
weeks 
(unless 
timescale 
extended in 
writing or 
subject to 
PPA)

A very detailed discussion was had by the members regarding the schedule and the 
timescales contained therein. Members then addressed the issue of member 
involvement in the negotiation of S106 Agreements.  It was made very clear that all 
members feel very detached from this whole process and given the importance and 
implications of any S106 agreement to the local parish, and financial implications for the 
district, this is a situation that should be addressed.  Members should be fully aware of 
current agreements and provisions/community benefits that will result from them. Also 
there must be an established procedure for members to be able to put forward their 
views and that of their electorate to the negotiating team so that these views can be 
incorporated where possible into future agreements.

It was noted and agreed that the actual negotiation of the agreement between the Legal 
Team and the Developer involved commercially sensitive data being presented and that 
it would not be appropriate for any member to be present at this stage. However, it was 
clear that an opportune time for members to discuss the contents of the agreement with 
case officer needed to be identified and the “schedule of the process” had to be 
amended to reflect these timescales.

Page 15



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

16

Members were also reminded that they currently have the right to contact the case 
officer of an application in their ward during the consultation period. Despite this, it was 
felt that this point in the process was often too late and that new recommendations 
should be made to address this. The working group therefore made the following 
recommendations;- 

1 When members are notified of a major application (ie ten units or above) in their 
ward, this advice should also indicate if the application is likely to be subject of an 
S106 agreement. This would give the members an opportunity to take advice 
from Parish Councils as to opportunity and requirements and relay this 
information to the case officer before instructions are issued to the Legal Team to 
prepare draft agreement.

2 Members should be notified of the proposed “Heads of Terms Requirements” of 
the S106 agreement at the same time as the Legal Department are instructed to 
draft an agreement.

This would give the members a further opportunity to have discussions with the 
case officer. The member would also then be aware of the start of the 
“Consultation Period” and would have the opportunity to keep in touch with any 
responses to the consultation document.

Members also had grave concerns about the monitoring of the trigger points within the 
agreement for payment of financial contributions and expressed concerns that these 
monies due were collected in a timely fashion. Another major concern was expressed 
with regard to how all the agreements were recorded and data kept in such a way that it 
could be accessed and data extracted accordingly.  The group were advised that a new 
post of “Planning Obligations Officer” had been created and was expected to be filled 
imminently and that this post would create a dedicated resource for the monitoring of 
S106 agreements which had not been available in the past.  Also that new software had 
been recently installed which now provides the capability to store this data correctly 
whereas in the past this had been done manually.

The January meeting focused on the West of Horsham, Countryside Homes Application 
as a case study to establish the process and see if it was fit for purpose. It was pointed 
out to the working group that it was not the remit of the group to question the actual final 
agreement but to establish if the process/procedure that was current at that time had 
been followed and if changes/recommendations to the process/procedure would benefit 
the district.

Page 16



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

17

The Development Manager confirmed that the outline application had been made in  
2009 when the initial agreement was entered into. The number of affordable housing 
units (20%) had been established at this stage and the developer was not required to 
confirm the size of the units at this stage as this was established during the reserved 
matters applications. There was an avid discussion with regard to the term “Units”. The 
main point of concern being that outline stage agreeing a per-centage of the overall 
units being built does not give a true monetary value receivable from the development. 
Given that Government Guidelines do not require the developer to provide a detailed 
breakdown of the unit types the question was asked and discussed as to if HDC would 
benefit by agreeing a monetary value of the overall expected GDP as opposed to a per-
centage of the number of units to be built. By the time the reserved matters application 
comes before councillors planning approval for the outline application will already have 
been approved along with the terms of the S106 agreement. Therefore the final mix 
agreed could have a negative effect on contributions received by HDC, also that the 
local housing need was not being directly addressed at outline application stage.

The group was advised that this method was in accord with Government Guidelines and 
not within the remit of HDC to revise policy to accommodate the option of negotiating a 
monetary value. The group was further advised that in the determination of the type of 
unit required by the district that the housing need is reviewed in consultation with the 
housing manager so that HDC get the required type of unit to accommodate those on 
the housing list and this can be more beneficial than a fixed monetary value. The 
Council does, as is the case with the West of Horsham agreement, often include a 
“Clawback” clause to allow further contributions to be claimed in the instances where 
developers are making profits in excess of original projections. It was noted that in the 
past these have not been included within all S106 agreements. In order to mitigate this 
the group agreed the following recommendation;-

3 That a “Clawback” clause be included in all future S106 agreements where the 
proportion of affordable housing does not meet the required level and where a 
reduced level has been agreed following a review of the viability of the 
development.

The group was also reminded that whilst  HDC is responsible for the final agreement 
WSCC is also involved in the negotiation in respect of infrastructure. Unfortunately it 
was not within the remit of this group to comment on the performance of WSCC but to 
note that many of the delays in finalizing agreements and bringing applications to 
committee in a timely fashion are due to the poor response times from WSCC and that 
WSCC is now outsourcing work of this nature.

Page 17



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

18

The working group questioned the process when an amendment is requested to the 
original S106 agreement. Members were advised that a viability study would be 
required if an amendment was requested. The viability study would then be scrutinised 
very often by external professionals before any recommendation would be brought 
before planning committee.

To further review the level of affordable housing being achieved from S106 agreements 
at a comparable time period it was agreed to review the agreement for Highwood, Land 
West of Horsham and the Crest Development , Kilnwood Vale.

The three S106 agreements were then compared for consistency. The variance 
between these agreements was noted in particular the Kilnwood Vale agreement. The 
major difference with this particular agreement was pin pointed to the fact that this 
agreement was negotiated in conjunction with Crawley and included provision for the 
requirements of Crawley. Therefore this stand-alone agreement could not be used as a 
comparison for the other two agreements.

It was also noted that at the time of these agreements the national economy was just 
starting to come out of recession.  Very few people were building or selling houses. 
Mortgages were not available. HDC was not meeting Government targets set for new 
house building. HDC had to encourage developers to build in the district and it is without 
question that target affordable housing levels were negotiated to facilitate this 
requirement.

The use of templates as a negotiation tool was discussed and the Development 
Manager confirmed that 2 template formats are in place as a starting point for 
negotiations. (see appendix 3 & 4) but given the variables between each particular site 
and location it would not be possible to have any one standard template that fits all.
The idea of establishing an S106 review panel to review all S106 agreements and 
report back to local ward members has been explored. The Director of Planning, 
Economic Development & property has since advised that such a panel would in effect 
come under a planning function rather than a Scrutiny function and therefore would not 
be valid on legal grounds.    

Page 18



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

19

The best route forward to ensure transparency and member involvement would be for 
the recommendations as stated on previous pages to be adopted as procedure along 
with:
 

4 At briefings on planning applications the officers will present a summary of the 
heads of terms within current S106 agreements being negotiated

5 Heads of Terms within committee reports should explained in more detail than 
currently is the practice

To accommodate the fact that some developments will cross 2 wards and in the case of 
large scale developments in the town which could impact on a number of wards a 
further recommendation was agreed;-

6 The Chairman of the relevant planning committees would be sent copies of all 
the Heads of Terms at the same time that they are sent to Local Members.  It 
would then be at the discretion of the Chairmen whether members from other 
wards should be sent the information as well. 

During the review the group discussed the ongoing negotiations with regard to North 
Horsham development. Given the size and scale of this development the group were 
assured that this would be treated as a one off development and that special 
arrangements would be implemented in respect of seminars and briefings to ensure that 
all members are advised of progress, have an opportunity to put forward their views and 
engage in this process. This would be for the benefit of all members not just local ward 
members affected by the development. 

Finally the group discussed the ongoing review in parliament of the Housing Bill and the 
changes that may be forthcoming on completion of this review. The impending 
introduction of CIL regulations later this year will have a major impact on the whole 
S106 process and the new guidelines that will result from this. Given this impending 
change any major recommendations for a change in process (other than those 
recommendations on previous pages) that could be made by this group would be 
ineffective and pointless. The recommendations contained within this report should be 
brought forward to Scrutiny & Overview and implemented immediately. These will if 
followed make the transition to CIL regulations a much smoother transition for all 
members and ensure full member involvement in the process.

Page 19



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

20

Summary

Over the 6 months of this review the working group and the co-opted members have 
thoroughly gone through and reviewed the process used by HDC in the production of an 
S106 agreement.  Whilst it is generally felt that the process is not perfect, the working 
group acknowledges the constraints of Government Guidelines which dictate this 
process.

In reviewing the sample agreements detailed earlier no fault can be found with the 
implementation of the process at that time. It is acknowledged that the economy at that 
time had a detrimental impact on the benefits that may have been received by the 
district in comparison with the current position but given the circumstances of that time 
the best outcome that could have been achieved, was achieved. 

It should be noted in the work programme that this process should be reviewed again in 
12 months to monitor how the implementation of CIL regulations have affected this 
process and to monitor the introduction of the recommendations contained within this 
report to ensure they have had the desired effect with regard to member consultation 
and input.    

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all the members of the group for their 
conscientious and hard work and for their commitment shown in carrying out this 
review, which has been complicated and taxing because of the nature and complexity of 
S106 Agreements.   

Page 20



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

21

 Recommendations within the Report:

1 When members are notified of a major application (ie ten units or above) in their 
ward, this advice should also indicate if the application is likely to be subject of an 
S106 agreement. This would give the members an opportunity to take advice 
from Parish Councils as to opportunity and requirements and relay this 
information to the case officer before instructions are issued to the Legal Team to 
prepare draft agreement.

2 Members should be notified of the proposed “Heads of Terms Requirements” of 
the S106 agreement at the same time as the Legal Department are instructed to 
draft an agreement.

This would give the members a further opportunity to have discussions with the 
case officer. The member would also then be aware of the start of the 
“Consultation Period” and would have the opportunity to keep in touch with any 
responses to the consultation document.

3 That a “Clawback” clause be included in all in future S106 agreements where the 
proportion of affordable housing does not meet the required level, following 
negotiation through a viability agreement.

4 At briefings on planning applications the officers will present a summary of the 
Heads of Terms within current S106 agreements being negotiated 

5 Heads of Terms within committee reports should explained in more detail than 
currently is the practice

6 The Chairman of the relevant planning committees would be sent copies of all 
the Heads of Terms at the same time that they are sent to Local Members. It 
would then be at the discretion of the Chairmen whether members from other 
wards should be sent the information as well. 

Brian O’Connell
Chairman of Business Improvement Working Group
April 2016

Page 21



Agenda Item 6a
Business Improvement Working Group – Final Report on S 106 review (Continued)

22
Page 22



s106 in the Planning Process

16 December 2015

P
age 23



What is s106?

• Planning obligations 
under Section 106 of the 
Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended), commonly 
known as s106 
agreements, are a 
mechanism which make a 
development proposal 
acceptable in planning 
terms, that would not 
otherwise be acceptable. 

• They are focused on site 
specific mitigation of the 
impact of development. 
S106 agreements are 
often referred to as 
'developer contributions' 
along with highway 
contributions and the 
Community Infrastructure 
Levy. 

P
age 24



Uses for s106

• To secure affordable housing

• To secure financial contributions to provide 

infrastructure or affordable housing

• To restrict the development or use of the land in any 

specified way

• To require specified operations or activities to be 

carried out in, on, under or over the land

• To require the land to be used in any specified way

• To require a sum or sums to be paid to the authority on 

a specified date or dates or periodically

P
age 25



Uses for s106

• A planning obligation can be subject to 
conditions, it can specify restrictions definitely or 
indefinitely, and in terms of payments the timing 
of these can be specified in the obligation. 

• If the s106 is not complied with, it is enforceable 
against the person that entered into the 
obligation and any subsequent owner. The s106 
can be enforced by injunction. 

• In case of a breach of the obligation the authority 
can take direct action and recover expenses. 

P
age 26



Relevant legislation

• The primary legislation is set out in the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)

• The Community Infrastructure Levy 

Regulations 2010 (as amended)

P
age 27



Legal tests

The legislation sets out legal tests that all 

obligations must meet:

1. necessary to make the development 

acceptable in planning terms; 

2. directly related to the development; and 

3. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind 

to the development. 

P
age 28



NPPF Compliance

As well as the legal tests, the policy tests are contained in the National 
Planning Policy Framework ( NPPF): 

"203. Local planning authorities should consider whether otherwise 
unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the use 
of conditions or planning obligations. Planning obligations should only 
be used where it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts 
through a planning condition. 

204. Planning obligations should only be sought where they meet all of 
the following tests: necessary to make the development acceptable in 
planning terms directly related to the development; and fairly and 
reasonably related in scale and kind to the development." 

P
age 29



Viability

There has been growing concern about delivery of 

development and development viability. This is 

reflected in the NPPF: 

"205. Where obligations are being sought or 

revised, local planning authorities should take 

account of changes in market conditions over time 

and, wherever appropriate, be sufficiently flexible 

to prevent planned development being stalled."

P
age 30



Guidance in dealing with s106

Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) has recently been updated in relation to s106 
to include viability guidance. 

The PPG changes emphasise the S106 legal and policy tests and relationship 
with the development plan (including neighbourhood plans). 

In terms of the process- the changes focus on early engagement by the Local 
Planning Authority (LPA) with applicants and infrastructure providers and 
S106 being part of the pre-application process. 

There are also a number of suggested improvement to the way LPAs approach 
S106 e.g. standard templates, and working with other authorities to pool 
expertise. 

There is a greater emphasis on public access to information and the S106 
being available as part of the planning register. 

P
age 31



Amendments to s106

• Under the Planning Act s106 (A) a person 

bound by the obligation can seek to have the 

obligation modified or discharged after five 

years. 

• The principles for modifying an obligation are 

that it "no longer serve a useful purpose" or 

"continues to serve a useful purpose equally 

well“

P
age 32



s106 and CIL

• The Government viewed S106 as providing 
only partial and variable response to capturing 
funding contributions for infrastructure. As 
such, provision for the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is now in place in the 
2008 Planning Act. 

• CIL has not replaced Section 106 agreements, 
the introduction of CIL resulted in a tightening 
up of the s 106 tests

P
age 33



S106 and CIL

• S106 agreements, in terms of developer 

contributions, should be focused on addressing 

the specific mitigation required by a new 

development

• CIL has been developed to address the broader 

impacts of development. There should be no 

circumstances where a developer is paying CIL 

and S106 for the same infrastructure in relation 

to the same development.

P
age 34



s106 process at HDC

• Application type and size may determine the 
need for a s106 – e.g. 25 dwellings requires 35% 
affordable housing

• Site specific requirements known following the 
consultation period ending and the information 
contained in consultation responses from HDC 
departments, WSCC etc

• Instructions sent to Legal to draw up the s106 
agreement once figures and schemes are known 
(arising form consultation responses)

P
age 35



s106 process at HDC

• Legal team prepare and draw up the s106 

• Planning officer reviews draft s106 when this has 
been prepared

• Legal team will liaise with the developers legal 
advisors on this regarding trigger points and 
timeframes for payments etc

• Legal will arrange for the s106 to be signed by all 
parties and engrossed

• Once engrossed, the planning decision is 
released.

P
age 36



Agenda Item 6a
Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement TEMPLATE

37

                                           Dated                                                      2015
Between:

(1)  The Owner [ ]

[(2) The Mortgagee   [ ]   ]

(3) The District Council  HORSHAM DISTRICT 
COUNCIL

(4) The County Council WEST SUSSEX COUNTY 
COUNCIL

______________________________________

AGREEMENT    

under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other powers

Land [ ]
______________________________________

HDC Legal Ref [ ]
Planning Ref :[ ]

S106_[ ]
Committee: Development Control (North/South) 

Date: [ ]
Minute Ref: [ ]

[OR] 
Delegated Decisions: Part 3 Schedule 13 Paragraph 6.10

Paul Cummins 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Parkside 
Chart Way 
Horsham
West Sussex 
RH12 1RL

Page 37



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

38

This Agreement is dated                                          2015 and is made between: 

(1) [ ]  (‘the Owner’);

(2) [ ]  (‘the Mortgagee’)

(3) Horsham District Council of Parkside, Chart Way,  Horsham, West 

Sussex RH12 1RL (‘the District Council’); and

(4) West Sussex County Council of County Hall, West Street, Chichester, West Sussex 

PO19 1RQ (‘the County Council’)

1. Background

1.1 The Owner is the registered proprietor with Title Absolute of the Land registered at 

HM Land Registry under Title Number WSX[    ] 

1.2 The Mortgagee by way of a charge dated [ ] has an interest in the Land

1.3 On [ ] the Application was submitted to the District Council for 

planning permission under reference DC[ ] in respect of the Land

 

1.4 The Proposed Development will generate additional demands for [community 

facilities, open space and recreation, library, refuse and recycling, education, 

transport and fire and rescue] which would not arise but for the Proposed 

Development and which cannot be accommodated by the existing infrastructure  

1.5 The District Council is the local planning authority for the purposes of the Act for the 

area in which the Land is situated and is of the opinion that the obligations 

contained herein are necessary to address the impacts of the Proposed 

Development 

1.6 The County Council is the Highways Authority as defined in the Highways Act 1980 

Page 38



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

39

and is the Fire & Rescue, Education and Library Authority for the area of the Land 

and is of the opinion that the Fire & Rescue Contribution, Education Contribution, 

Library Contribution and Transport Contributions payable to the County Council and 

works hereunder are necessary to address the highways, library, fire and rescue and 

transportation impacts of the Development

1.7 The District Council is prepared to grant the Planning Permission subject to inter alia 

the Owner entering into the Planning Obligations and the Owner has indicated its 

willingness to enter into the Planning Obligations upon the terms set out in this 

Agreement 

1.8 The District Council and the County Council are satisfied that this Agreement is to 

the benefit of the public

1.9 The parties hereto are satisfied that the provisions of this Agreement comply with 

the requirements of Regulation 122 and Regulation 123 of the Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 as amended

1.10 The Owner has agreed with the District Council and the County Council to pay the 

Financial Contributions and to carry out certain works in accordance with this 

Agreement and the Planning Permission

2. Interpretation

In this Agreement:

2.1 Words importing the masculine include the feminine and vice versa

2.2 Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa

2.3 Words importing persons include companies and corporations and vice 

versa

Page 39



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

40

2.4 Wherever there is more than one person named as a party and where more 

than one party undertakes an obligation all their obligations can be enforced 

against all of them jointly and against each individually

2.5 Any reference to a clause or schedule or plan is to a clause schedule or plan 

in to or attached to this Agreement 

2.6 Any reference to a colour or letter is to a colour or letter on the plan 

attached to this Agreement

2.7 In the absence of contrary provision any reference to a statute includes any 

statutory modification or re-enactment of it and every statutory instrument, 

direction, specification made or issued under the statute or deriving validity 

from it

2.8 References to any party to this Agreement shall include the successors in 

title to that party and to any person deriving title through or under that 

party and in the case of the District Council the successors to their functions 

as local planning authority and local housing authority and in the case of the 

County Council the successors to their functions as highways authority, 

library authority and fire and rescue authority.

3. Definitions

In this Agreement the following expressions shall unless the context 

otherwise requires have the following meanings:

“Act” means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended;

“Air Quality Contribution” means the sum of [

] pounds (£[ ]) Index Linked to be 

used solely towards the provision/improvement of  [

“All Requisite Consents” means all requisite consents orders agreements 

authorisations licences and permissions required to 

implement the Scheme

Page 40



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

41

“Application” means the planning application number DC[ ]  for 

full planning permission for [

] 

“the Charge” means the charge referred to in Clause 1.2 above

“Commencement of the 

Development”

means the carrying out of a material operation as defined in S 

56(4) of the Act in respect of the Proposed Development but 

excluding any operation relating to works of investigations in 

respect of land contamination or remedial action in respect 

thereof enabling works site clearance archaeological 

investigations and digs exploratory boreholes operations 

permitted by the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 2015 the erection of hoardings 

and fencing temporary diversion of services and signage 

(including the formation of temporary construction accesses) 

preliminary landscaping before construction activity occurs on 

the Land and any works matters and operations to enable any of 

the foregoing to take place and “Commence Development” shall 

be construed accordingly;

“Commencement Date” means the date on which the Commencement of the 

Development occurs;

“Commencement Notice” means the written notice confirming the Commencement Date 

referred to in clause 9.1.1 and served in accordance with clause 

9.3;

“Community Facilities 

Contribution”

means the sum of [

] pounds (£[ ]) Index Linked to be 

used solely towards the provision/improvement of  [

]

“Community Centres and 

Halls Contribution”

means the sum of [

] pounds (£[ ]) Index Linked to be 

used solely towards the provision/improvement of  [

] 

“Dwelling Units” means the dwelling units to be constructed on the Land 

pursuant to the Permission and “Dwelling Unit” and “Dwelling” 

means any one of them;

Page 41



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

42

“Education Contribution” means the [Primary Education Contribution, the Secondary 

Education Contribution and the Sixth Form Education 

Contribution] together;

“First Occupation” means beneficial occupation for any use for which the Proposed 

Development was designed (or part of the Proposed 

Development where the context so requires) other than 

occupation for the purposes of construction, fitting out or 

marketing;

“Financial Contributions” means the [Air Quality Contribution, the  Community Facilities 

Contribution, the Community Centres and Halls Contribution, 

the Education Contribution, the Fire and Rescue Services 

Contribution, the Refuse and Recycling Contribution, the Library 

Contribution, the Open Space and Recreation Contribution, the 

Public Art Contribution and the Total Access Demand 

Contribution] together;

“the Fire and Rescue Services 

Contribution”

means the financial contribution of [ ] pounds (£[     

]) increased or decreased by an amount equal to the 

proportionate increase in the All-In Tender Price Index published 

by the Building Costs Information Service of the Royal Institute 

of Chartered Surveyors between the quarter preceding the date 

of this Deed and the quarter preceding the date of payment of 

this contribution to be used solely towards the provision or 

improvement of fire and rescue services, [excluding the 

provision of fire hydrants], in the district of Horsham

“General Index” means the BCIS General Building Cost Index of the Royal 

Institution of Chartered Surveyors and if the basis of 

computation of the Index shall change any official reconciliation 

between the two bases of computation shall be binding upon 

the parties hereto and shall be applied in adjusting the 

application of the Index hereto. In the absence of any such 

official reconciliation such adjustments shall be made to the 

figures of the Index as to make it correspond as nearly as 

possible to the previous method of computation and such 

adjusted figures shall be used to the exclusion of the actual 

Page 42



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

43

published figures (until officially reconciled figures are 

published)

Index Linked means as set out in Clause 10

“Interest” means interest at the rate of 4% above the Bank of England base 

rate applicable at the Specified Date which shall be calculated 

on a day to day basis;

“Land” means land at [     ] shown edged red on the attached Plan 1 for 

identification purposes only

“Library Contribution” means the sum of [ ] 

pounds (£[ ]) being a financial contribution 

towards the provision of ……… increased or decreased by an 

amount equal to the proportionate increase in the All-In Tender 

Price Index published by the Building Costs Information Service 

of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors between the 

quarter preceding the date of this Deed and the quarter 

preceding the date of payment of this contribution 

“Occupation” means occupation for any purpose for which the Planning 

Permission has been granted by the District Council but not 

including occupation by personnel engaged in the construction, 

fitting out or occupation for security, marketing or display and 

“Occupy” and “Occupied” shall be constructed accordingly;

“Occupation Date” means the date on which the first Dwelling is Occupied;

“Occupation Notice” means the written notice confirming the Occupation Date 

referred to in clause 9.1.2 and served in accordance with clause 

9.3;

“Open Space and Recreation 

Contribution”

means the sum of [ ] 

pounds (£[ ]) Index Linked to be used 

toward the provision or improvement of 

“Payment Notice” means a payment notice in the form attached at Schedule 1 to 

this Agreement;

“Plan” means the plan attached at Schedule 2 to this Agreement;

“Planning Obligations” means the obligations conditions and stipulations set out in 

clauses 6, 7, and 8 of this Agreement;

Page 43



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

44

“Planning Permission” means the planning permission for the Proposed Development 

pursuant to the Application;

“Primary Education 

Contribution

means the financial contribution of [

] pounds  (£[ ]) towards the costs of 

providing the additional primary education infrastructure 

required to accommodate the extra demands for education 

services that would be generated by the proposed Development 

and should the Specified Date be after 31 March 2015 the 

Primary Education Contribution shall be re-calculated in 

accordance with the following formula:

Number of pupil places [0.4235] x Cost Multiplier

And the Cost Multiplier shall be the DfE average build cost 

multiplier for primary schools where this has been newly 

published in the financial year in which the Education 

Contribution is paid but where this has not been newly 

published in the financial year in which the Education 

Contribution is paid the Education Contribution shall be 

increased or decreased by an amount equal to the 

proportionate increase in the All-In Tender Price Index published 

by the Building Costs Information Service of the Royal Institute 

of Chartered Surveyors between the quarter preceding the date 

of this Deed and the quarter preceding the date of payment of 

this contribution to be used towards the provision of  additional 

primary education infrastructure required to accommodate the 

extra demands for education services that would be generated 

by the Proposed Development

“Public Art Contribution” means the sum of [            ] pounds (£[      ]) Index Linked to be 

used towards the provision of public art on at [                  ];

“Proposed Development” means  the development of the Land proposed by the 

Application or permitted by planning permission granted 

pursuant to the Application or carried out in accordance with 

such planning permission

Page 44



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

45

“Refuse and Recycling 

Contribution”

means the sum of [ ] pounds (£[

]) Index Linked to be used towards the provision or 

improvement of refuse and recycling facilities or services in the 

district of Horsham; 

“Scheme”

“Secondary Education 

Contribution

means the financial contribution of [ ] 

pounds  (£[ ]) towards the costs of providing the 

additional secondary education infrastructure required to 

accommodate the extra demands for education services that 

would be generated by the proposed Development and should 

the Specified Date be after  31 March 2015 the Seondary 

Education Contribution shall be re-calculated in accordance with 

the following formula:

Number of pupil places [0.3025] x Cost Multiplier

And the Cost Multiplier shall be the DfE average build cost 

multiplier for primary schools where this has been newly 

published in the financial year in which the Education 

Contribution is paid but where this has not been newly 

published in the financial year in which the Education 

Contribution is paid the Education Contribution shall be 

increased or decreased by an amount equal to the 

proportionate increase in the All-In Tender Price Index published 

by the Building Costs Information Service of the Royal Institute 

of Chartered Surveyors between the quarter preceding the date 

of this Deed and the quarter preceding the date of payment of 

this contribution to be used towards the provision of  additional 

secondary education infrastructure required to accommodate 

the extra demands for education services that would be 

generated by the Proposed Development;

“Section 73 Consent” means a planning permission granted pursuant to Section 

73 of the Act which varies and /or removes any condition 

subject to which the Planning Permission  and/or such 

Page 45



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

46

planning permission pursuant to Section 73 of the 1990 Act 

was granted 

“Sixth Form Education 

Contribution

means the financial contribution of [ ] 

pounds  (£[ ]) towards the costs of providing the 

additional secondary education infrastructure required to 

accommodate the extra demands for education services that 

would be generated by the Proposed Development and should 

the Specified Date be after  31 March 2015 the Secondary 

Education Contribution shall be re-calculated in accordance with 

the following formula:

Number of pupil places [0.3025] x Cost Multiplier

And the Cost Multiplier shall be the DfE average build cost 

multiplier for primary schools where this has been newly 

published in the financial year in which the Education 

Contribution is paid but where this has not been newly 

published in the financial year in which the Education 

Contribution is paid the Education Contribution shall be 

increased or decreased by an amount equal to the 

proportionate increase in the All-In Tender Price Index published 

by the Building Costs Information Service of the Royal Institute 

of Chartered Surveyors between the quarter preceding the date 

of this Deed and the quarter preceding the date of payment of 

this contribution to be used towards the provision of  additional 

secondary education infrastructure required to accommodate 

the extra demands for education services that would be 

generated by the Proposed Development

“Specified Date” means the date upon which an obligation arising under this 

Agreement is due to be performed;

“the Total Access Demand 

Contribution”

means the financial contribution of £  to be used towards 

the Scheme and which is calculated in accordance with the 

Total Access Demand Methodology increased or decreased 

Page 46



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

47

by an amount equal to the proportionate increase in the 

All-In Tender Price Index published by the Building Costs 

Information Service of the Royal Institute of Chartered 

Surveyors between the quarter preceding the date of this 

Deed and the quarter preceding the date of payment of 

this Contribution;

“Total Access Demand 
Methodology” 

the methodology developed by the County Council and adopted 

by the District Council which requires contribution towards the 

cost of infrastructure and other measures that are necessary to 

mitigate the impact of development;

4. Enabling Provisions

This Agreement is made pursuant to section 106 of the Act, section 1 of the Localism 

Act 2011 section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972, and all other enabling 

powers and all other enabling powers and has been entered into by the District 

Council pursuant to its Development Management Committee [ ] resolution of [

] (Minute No. [ ])  / Part 3 Schedule 13 Paragraph 6.10.

5. Commencement

This Agreement shall come into effect upon the date hereof  but the provisions in 

clauses 6, 7 and 8 shall only take effect upon:

5.1.1 the District Council granting the Planning Permission; and

5.1.2 the Commencement of Development

6. Owner’s Covenants

6.1 The Owner hereby covenants with the District Council and the County Council:

Page 47



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

48

6.1.1 On or before the Commencement of Development/first Occupation of any 

Dwelling Unit  to pay to the District Council the Financial Contributions in a 

single sum and to attach to such payment a fully completed Payment Notice 

6.1.2 Not to Commence Development /allow Occupation of any Dwelling Unit or 

cause or allow Commencement of Development/Occupation of any Dwelling 

Unit  until the Financial Contributions have been paid to the District Council 

in full

6.1.3 In the event of failure by the Owner to pay the Financial Contributions prior 

to Commencement of Development/first Occupation of any Dwelling Unit 

under Clause 6.1.1 then the Owner covenants that it will pay Interest on the 

outstanding amount from the Specified Date to the date of actual payment 

of the Financial Contributions in full

7.     District Council’s Covenants

7.1 The District Council hereby covenants with the Owner and the County Council to 

transfer the Education Contribution, the Library Contribution, the Fire and Rescue 

Services Contribution and the Total Access Demand Contribution to the County 

Council within a reasonable period after receipt by the District Council of a 

reasonable written request specifying the particular infrastructure on which the said 

contribution will be spent by the County Council.

7.2 The District Council hereby covenants with the Owner that if or to the extent the 

District Council Contributions shall not have been spent by the District Council at the 

end of ten years of the date of receipt of the payment of the said contributions the 

the District Council shall, upon written request, on such date refund to the party that 

paid the relevant District Council Contribution any unexpended sum EXCEPTING 

THAT if at the end of the ten year period the District Council shall have entered into 

a contract or other legally binding obligation to expend the relevant District Council 

Contribution or part thereof for the purposes specified in this agreement then the 

District Council shall not be required to refund any part of the District Council 

Contributions required for that purpose but shall as soon as possible following the 

Page 48



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

49

completion of the said contract or other legally binding commitment refund any 

unexpended part of the District Council Contributions.

7.3 The  District Council Contributions sought and secured by this Agreement do not 

contravene Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) 

regulation 123(3) and if such contravention is found to exist then those obligations 

found to be in contravention of regulation 123(3) shall not be sought nor 

enforceable under the terms of this Agreement   Provided Always that no liability 

under this paragraph shall extend on behalf of the  District Council in respect of the 

County Council covenant in this regard as set out in clause 8.4 below

8. County Council’s  Covenants

8.1 The County Council covenants that upon receipt of the Education Contribution, 

Library Contribution, Fire and Rescue Service Contribution and Total Access Demand 

Contribution from the District Council it will hold it in a separately identified interest 

bearing section of the County Council’s combined accounts and apply the same 

towards the cost of education library fire and rescue and transport infrastructure in 

the vicinity of the Land

8.2 The County Council covenants that upon written request within ten years of the date 

of receipt of the Education Contribution Library Contribution Fire and Rescue Service 

Contribution and Total Access Demand Contribution it will issue to the party that 

paid the said contribution an account certified by the Executive Director of Finance 

and Performance for the time being of the County Council detailing the scheme on 

which the Education Contribution Library Contribution Fire and Rescue Service 

Contribution and Transport Contribution has been expended by the County Council

8.3 If or to the extent the Education Contribution Library Contribution Fire and Rescue 

Service Contribution and Total Access Demand  Contribution shall not have been 

spent by the County Council at the end of the period referred to in paragraph 8.2 

above the County Council shall on such date refund to the party that paid the 

Education Contribution Library Contribution Fire and Rescue Service Contribution 

and Total Access Demand  Contribution any unexpended sum together with 

Page 49



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

50

compound interest on such unexpended sum from the date of receipt of the said 

contributions by the County Council to the date of repayment at the base rate of the 

Bank of England applicable at the date of repayment calculated on a day to day 

basis.

8.4 If at the end of the period referred to in paragraph 8.2 above the County Council 

shall have entered into a contract or other legally binding obligation to expend the 

Education Contribution Library Contribution Fire and Rescue Service Contribution 

and/or Total Access Demand Contribution or part thereof for the purposes specified 

in paragraph 8.1 above then the County Council shall not be required to refund any 

part of the Education Contribution Library Contribution Fire and Rescue Service 

Contribution and/or Total Access Demand Contribution required for that purpose 

but shall as soon as possible following the completion of the said contract or other 

legally binding commitment account to the party that paid the Education 

Contribution Library Contribution Fire and Rescue Service Contribution and/or Total 

Access Demand Contribution in the manner set out in paragraph 8.2 above and 

refund any unexpended part of the Education Contribution Library Contribution Fire 

and Rescue Service Contribution and/or Total Access Demand Contribution in the 

manner set out in paragraph 8.3 above

8.5 The  County Council Contributions sought and secured by this Agreement do not 

contravene Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) 

regulation 123(3) and if such contravention is found to exist then those obligations 

found to be in contravention of regulation 123(3) shall not be sought nor 

enforceable under the terms of this Agreement   Provided Always that no liability 

under this paragraph shall extend on behalf of the  County Council in respect of the 

District Council covenant in this regard as set out in Clause 7 above

9. Notices

9.1 The Owner covenants with the District Council and the County Council as follows:

Page 50



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

51

9.1.1 to give the Commencement Notice to the District Council and the County 

Council not less than 14 days before the Commencement Date

9.1.2 to give the Occupation Notice to the District Council not less than 14 days 

before the anticipated Occupation Date

9.2 The parties to this Agreement agree that if the Owner fails to give the notice 

required by clause 9.1.1 and 9.1.2 above then the District Council shall be entitled in 

its absolute discretion to determine the Commencement Date and shall give notice 

to the Owner of the District Council’s determination

9.3 Any notice certificate or other communication required or permitted to be given 

hereunder shall be given in writing to the relevant party at the relevant address 

referred to above or such other address as may be notified in writing to the other 

party and must be served personally or by registered or recorded delivery post and 

in the case of the District Council the Owner shall address any notice to the Head of 

Legal and Democratic Services of the District Council and in the case of and the 

County Council the Owner shall address any notice to the Monitoring and Records 

Team, Strategic Planning Division for the time being at the address of the County 

Council given herein.

9.4 Any notice certificate or other communication sent by post shall be deemed (in the 

absence of evidence of receipt) to have been delivered two days after despatch and 

in proving the fact of despatch it shall be sufficient to show that the envelope was 

properly addressed and posted 

9.5 Any notice certificate or other communication delivered personally shall be deemed 

to have been delivered on the day of its despatch if despatched during or prior to 

normal business hours but otherwise on the next business day thereafter

10. Index Linking

Page 51



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

52

The Owner agrees with the District Council that any sums payable by the Owner under this 

Agreement shall be increased by the application of the following formula:

A = B x C

           D

where A is the sum actually payable on the Specified Date

B is the original sum mentioned in this Agreement

C is the General Index for the month two months before the Specified Date

D is the General Index for the month two months before the date of this 

Agreement

C is equal to or greater than 1

D

11. Interest

The Owner agrees with the District Council and the County Council to pay interest on sums 

due the District Council or the County Council under this Agreement but not paid on the 

Specified Date from the Specified Date until actual payment.  The rate of interest shall be 4% 

above the Bank of England’s base rate

12. Costs

The Owner agrees:

12.1 with the District Council to pay on the date hereof

12.1.1 The District Council’s reasonable legal costs incurred in preparing and 

entering into this Agreement

12.1.2 The monitoring costs of [ ] pounds (£[ ])  

12.1.3 The planning officer contribution of [ ] pounds (£[ ])

 

Page 52



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

53

12.2 with the County Council to pay on the date hereof the County Council’s reasonable 

legal costs incurred in entering into this Agreement

13. General

The parties agree that:

13.1 nothing in this Agreement constitutes an obligation to grant planning permission

13.2 nothing in this Agreement grants planning permission or any other approval consent 

or permission required from the District Council or the County Council in the 

exercise of any other statutory function

13.3 nothing in this Agreement fetters or restricts the exercise by the District Council or 

the County Council of any of their powers

13.4 the obligations contained in this agreement are planning obligations for the purpose 

of s106 of the Act

13.5 this Agreement constitutes a deed

13.6 this Agreement is enforceable by the District Council and the County Council

13.7 nothing in this Agreement confers or is intended to confer a benefit on a third party 

under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

13.8 All payments in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be exclusive of 

any VAT payable in respect thereof

13.9 It is hereby agreed by the parties hereto that failure by the District Council and /or 

the County Council at any time to enforce the provisions of this Agreement or to 

require performance strictly or otherwise by the Owner of any of the conditions  

covenants agreements or obligations of this Agreement or any failure or delay by 

the District Council  and /or the County Council to exercise any act  right or remedy 

shall not be construed as a waiver of or as creating an estoppel in connection with 

any such condition  covenant  agreement  or obligation and shall not affect the 

validity of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of the District Council 

and/or the County Council to enforce any provision and any variation of this 

Agreement agreed between the Owner and the District Council and the County 

Council  shall not vitiate the remainder of the Agreement which shall remain in full 

force and effect subject to such amendment or amendments 

13.10 The parties hereby agree that 

(a) this Agreement supersedes and replaces all previous negotiations whether 

oral or written and 

Page 53



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

54

(b) no party has relied on any express or implied statement warranty 

representation or undertaking given by or on behalf of another 

(c) nothing herein contained excludes the liability of any of the parties in 

relation to fraud 

13.11 The Owner hereby consent to the registration of this Deed as a Local Land Charge 

13.12 The Owner hereby gives consent for the Plans to be reproduced by the District 

Council and indemnifies the District Council and the County Council against all 

actions costs claims and demands which may be made against the District Council 

and /or the County Council or its employee’s servants or agents in connection with 

the copyright in the same

13.13 Entry into this Deed does not constitute a transaction for a chargeable consideration 

for which Stamp Duty Land Tax is required and thus the District Council hereby 

certifies that a Land Transaction Return is not applicable in accordance with Section 

79(3) of the Finance Act 2003

13.14 If any provision in this Agreement shall be held to be invalid illegal or unenforceable 

the validity legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall not in 

any way be deemed thereby to be affected or impaired

13.15 The Owner hereby warrants to the District Council that except as provided in recital 

1.2 they have not leased mortgaged charged or otherwise created any interest in the 

Land at the date of this Agreement otherwise than those already set out in clause 1 

of this Agreement .  The Council agrees that this clause does not prevent the Owner 

from leasing mortgaging charging or otherwise creating any interest in the land in 

the future

13.16 Reference to any statute or statutory provisions includes a reference to:-

13.16.1 that statute or statutory provision as from time to time amended 

extended re-enacted consolidated or replaced; and

13.16.2 all statutory instruments or orders made pursuant to it whether 

before or after the date of this Agreement.

13.17 This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with Laws of 

England and the parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of England

13.18 Where the agreement approval consent or expression of satisfaction is required by 

the Owner from the District Council under the terms of this Agreement such 

agreement approval consent or expression of satisfaction shall not be unreasonably 

withheld or delayed

Page 54



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

55

13.19 The obligations in this Agreement (with the exception of clause 12)  shall cease to 

have effect (insofar only as it has not already been complied with) if  before the 

Commencement of Development the Planning Permission: 

(a) expires;

(b) is varied or revoked other than at the request of the 

Owner/Developer/Applicant; or

(c) is quashed following a successful legal challenge

but will remain in full force and effect so far as any subsisting Section 73 Consent is 

concerned. 

13.20 The obligations in this Agreement (with the exception of clause 12) shall cease to have 

effect (insofar only as it has not already been complied with) in so far only as the 

relevant Section 73 Consent is concerned if before the Commencement of 

Development the relevant Section 73 Consent: 

(a) expires;

(b) is varied or revoked other than at the request of the 

Owner/Developer/Applicant; or

(c) is quashed following a successful legal challenge

but will remain in full force and effect so far as the Planning Permission and any other 

subsisting Section 73 Consent is concerned

13.21 The Owner (or any person deriving title to the Land from them) shall not be liable for 

any breach of the restrictions and obligations set out in this Agreement where such 

breach arises after the Owner shall have parted with  its entire  interest in the Land 

or such part of the Land to which such breach relates save in respect of liability for 

antecedent breach of this Agreement 

13.21 The District Council and the County Council hereby agree no person shall be bound 

hereunder insofar as his interest is that of a statutory authority or service company 

which has acquired or is acquiring the site of any electricity sub-station gas governor 

or other structures or land

Page 55



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

56

13.22  It is hereby agreed that the provisions of this Agreement shall not be binding upon or 

enforceable against any future individual  purchaser of any of the Dwelling Units 

after construction

13.23 Section 33 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 applies to 

the covenants in this agreement

13.24 references to the Land include any part of it  

13.25 “including" means "including without limitation"

13.26 any covenant by the Owner not to do any act or thing includes a covenant not to 

permit or allow the doing of that act or thing

11.26 Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit or limit the right to develop any part of the 

Site in accordance with any planning permission (other than the Planning Permission 

or any modification variation or amendment thereof) granted after the date of the 

Planning Permission

11.27 Subject to the proviso to this clause if any Section 73 Consent is granted after the date of 

this Agreement:

(a) the obligations in this Agreement shall relate to and bind such Section 73 

Consent; and

(b) the definitions of Planning Application, Development and Planning 

Permission (other than for the purposes of clause 1) shall be construed to 

include reference to (respectively) the planning application for the 

Section 73 Consent the development permitted by the Section 73 Consent 

and the Section 73 Consent itself

PROVIDED THAT:

(c) nothing in this clause shall fetter the discretion of the District Council in 

determining any planning application for a Section 73 Consent and the 

appropriate planning obligations required in connection with the 

determination of the same; 

Page 56



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

57

(d) to the extent that any of the obligations in this Agreement have already 

been discharged at the date that a Section 73 Consent is granted they 

shall remain discharged for the purposes of the Section 73 Consent; and 

(e) the District Council reserves the right to insist upon the completion of a 

separate planning obligation by deed of agreement in connection with 

any Section 73 Consent if the District Council (acting reasonably) considers 

it desirable to do so

14. Mortgagee In Possession

The Mortgagee acknowledges and declares that this Agreement has been entered 

into by the Owner with its consent and that those parts of the Land which are 

subject to the Charge shall be bound by the obligations contained within this 

Agreement and also that the Charge shall take effect subject to this Agreement 

PROVIDED THAT the Mortgagee shall have no liability under this Agreement unless 

and until it takes possession of the relevant part of the Land (and shall not be liable 

for any breaches occurring prior to it taking possession) in which case it will also be 

bound by the obligations as if it were a person deriving title from the Owner.

15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Where any matters fail to be agreed between the parties or any dispute or 

difference occurs the question shall be referred on the application of either party for 

the determination of a single expert to be agreed between the parties or in default 

of agreement to be nominated by the President for the time being of the Chartered 

Institute of Housing

16 CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP

Page 57



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

58

The Owners and Mortgagee agrees with the District Council and the County Council 

to give the District Council and the County Council immediate written notice of any 

change in ownership of any of its interests in the Land occurring before all the 

obligations under this Agreement have been discharged such notice to give details 

of the transferee’s full name and registered office (if a company or usual address if 

not) together with the area of the Land or unit of occupation purchased by 

reference to a plan

IN WITNESS whereof this Deed has been duly executed the day and year first hereinbefore 

mentioned

Page 58



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

59

SCHEDULE  1

PAYMENT NOTICE

Payment of monies due under a Section 106 Agreement

Please answer all the questions

1. Payment made by/on behalf of 

……………………………………..

2. Land at :

Planning Reference:

3. Agreement dated

……………………………………..

4. Obligation in Agreement

(a) Clause No.

(b) Contribution towards :

(c) Amount of contribution due: 

(d) Date upon which contribution is 

due

(e) Amount of contribution enclosed 

£

…………………………………….

SCHEDULE 2

Plan

Page 59



Appendix 2 – S106 Agreement Template (Cont.)

60

EXECUTED AS A DEED by

[ ] Acting by

Director

Director/Secretary/Witness

SEALED WITH THE COMMON SEAL OF 

HORSHAM DISTRICT COUNCIL 

in the presence of

Authorised Signatory

SEALED WITH THE COMMON SEAL OF 

WEST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL 

in the presence of

Authorised Signatory

Page 60



Agenda Item 6b
Business Improvement Working Group

12h April 2016

61

Notes of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee
Business Improvement Working Group

12th April 2016

Present: Councillors: Brian O’Connell (Chairman), John Chidlow (Vice-
Chairman), Paul Clarke, Matthew French, Nigel Jupp, Godfrey 
Newman, Michael Willett

Apologies: Councillors: David Coldwell, Jonathan Dancer, Tony Hogben, David 
Jenkins

Also present: Councillors: Leonard Crosbie (Chairman of Scrutiny & Overview 
Committee)

Officers: Brian Elliot, Property & Facilities Manager
Aidan Thatcher, Development Manager

 
1. MINUTES

The notes of the meeting held on 8th March were approved as a correct record.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There were no announcements.

4. REVIEW OF THE S106 PROCESS

The Chairman presented his draft report, which summarised the working group’s 
conclusions regarding the Council’s current S106 processes and set out its 
recommendations.   

Members of the working group were unanimously supportive and congratulated 
the Chairman on producing a comprehensive Report which reflected the 
deliberations and conclusions of the review.

The Chairman advised that there were a few technical adjustments required to 
ensure the recommendations could be practically applied by the Planning 
Department and Members agreed that the draft Report should be amended 
accordingly before being submitted to Scrutiny. 

Page 61



Agenda Item 6b
Business Improvement Working Group

12h April 2016

62

4. Review of the S106 Process (Cont.)

 The Working Group agreed that the amended draft Report be 
taken to the Scrutiny & Overview Committee on 9th May, with 
the recommendation that the Report and Recommendations 
be submitted to Council.

The Chairman thanked Members of the working group for their contribution to the 
review, including the co-opted Members who had joined the Business 
Improvement Working Group for the duration or this review.  The Chairman also 
thanked the Development Manager for all his work and support during the review.

5. PROPERTY & ASSET MANAGEMENT – ASSET LIST

The Property & Facilities Manager presented a general overview of the Council’s 
Property Portfolio, focusing on the approach to repair and maintenance.

The presentation outlined the different categories of properties and, in cases 
where they were occupied by a tenant, the extent to which HDC was responsible 
for their upkeep depending on the terms of the lease and the type of property.

The facilities management contractor SSE had recently finalised an asset survey 
and submitted a comprehensive planned maintenance schedule for Mechanical 
and Electrical services for the next five years.  This schedule was currently being 
reviewed and checked.  

Maintenance of building fabric was mainly dealt with by reactive maintenance 
and approved cyclical works that were programmed for the financial year.  Major 
refurbishment works required a business case which would be approached with a 
view to adding value to the property.

A programme of inspection by technical officers of major Council assets, in 
particular leisure centres, had also been instigated.  

The Property & Facilities Manager advised that major expenditure would be 
included in the approved Council Budget.  The Property and Facilities Manager 
also advised that acquisitions or disposals are approved by the Cabinet Member.

The Property & Facilities Manager highlighted the differences between the 
investment portfolio of rented properties and the corporate portfolio.  The 
corporate portfolio, which includes properties used by the community, such as 
The Drill Hall, had to be considered for their social and community value as well 
as their commercial value.

Page 62



Agenda Item 6b
Business Improvement Working Group

12h April 2016

63

5. Property & Asset Management – Asset List (Cont.)

Members discussed the balance between social and commercial responsibilities, 
and the Chairman suggested that the Property be brought back to the working 
group as an ancillary item next Council Year, with a view to reviewing further.

The Chairman thanked the Property & Facilities Manager for his achievements 
since joining the Council in rationalising the Property Portfolio and significantly 
improving its management.

 The Chairman would write a summary of how the Property 
Asset List was being managed and bring this to the next 
Scrutiny & Overview Committee for information.

 

The meeting finished at 7.15pm having commenced at 6.00pm

CHAIRMAN 

Page 63



Agenda Item 6b
Business Improvement Working Group

12h April 2016

64
Page 64



Agenda Item 7
Crime and Disorder Working Group

18th April 2016 

65

Notes of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee 
Crime and Disorder Working Group 

18th April 2016 

Present: Councillors: Roger Clarke (Chairman) Alan Britten, David 
Coldwell, Adrian Lee, Tim Lloyd, Jim Sanson

Apologies: Councillors: David Skipp 

Also present: Councillor: John Blackall, Karen Burgess, Peter Burgess, Mike 
Morgan, Godfrey Newman, Kate Rowbottom  

Officers: Greg Charman, Community Safety Manager 
Richard Davy, Station Manager, West Sussex Fire and Rescue 
Service

1. TO APPROVE AS CORRECT THE RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD 
ON 14TH DECEMBER 2015 

The notes of the meeting held on 14th December 2015 were approved as a 
correct record. 

2. TO RECEIVE ANY DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There were no announcements. 

4.  PROTOCOL FOR THE SCRUTINY OF CRIME AND DISORDER 
MATTERS 

The Working Group noted the protocol which outlined the key provisions of 
the relevant legislation, the Terms of Reference of the Working Group, its 
duty to meet at least once a year, the role of scrutinising the CSP Plan and 
performance reports, the ability to give notice to responsible authorities to 
require their representatives to attend Working Group meetings or to 
provide information required for Scrutiny. 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 7
Crime and Disorder Working Group

18th April 2016 

66

5. REVIEW OF THE HORSHAM DISTRICT COMMUNITY SAFETY 
PARTNERSHIP (HDCSP) ACTION PLANS FOR THE 2015-2016 (END 
OF YEAR)

The Community Safety Manager presented the end of year action plan for 
his priority – Alcohol and Drugs. As the Community Safety Partnership 
(CSP) the partners develop a plan each year focusing on the priorities of 
the District. This report reflected back on 2015/16 and progress that had 
been made. 

The overall outcome of this priority was to “reduce the harm caused by 
drugs and alcohol to individuals, families and our communities”. There 
were six key performance indicators and although not all of these had 
been achieved in the year, a great deal of positive work had taken place. 

The action group that looked after this priority met on a quarterly basis and 
had provided a detailed response to the each of the strategic actions in the 
report which showed Members what had been achieved under this priority 
in 2015/16. 

The Community Safety Manager talked the Working Group through the 
progress detailed in the report. 

Members noted that in the forthcoming year the Partnership would 
continue to be involved with and support the promotion of a number of 
public health campaigns in the District such as Dry January, Mental Health 
Awareness Week, Samaritans Awareness Day and Dementia Awareness 
Week. 

The Working Group was disappointed to learn that the Mocktail Apprentice 
project would no longer continue as Horsham Matters could no longer 
support the scheme financially. The officers informed Members that all 
funding avenues had been explored in a bid to continue this project, but 
unfortunately these had not been successful. 

The second action plan priority under the CSP action plan – Casualty 
Reduction, was presented by the Road Safety Action Group lead Mr. 
Richard Davy, Station Manager, West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service. 

The outcome of this priority was “to reduce the number of killed and 
seriously injured on the roads in the District”. 

There were four strategic objectives for 2015/16 and Mr. Davy updated the 
Working Group on the progress related to each of these. There had been 
a slight increase in road related deaths in 2015/16 compared to the 

Page 66



Agenda Item 7
Crime and Disorder Working Group

18th April 2016 

67

previous year, the action group was trying to intervening at an earlier 
stager i.e. at primary schools, in order to educate and raise awareness. 
The action group met on a regular basis through the year and was taking 
positive action in Horsham to prevent antisocial driving. 

Mr. Davy talked the Working Group through the progress in the report 
under each of the actions. 

Members were invited to attend Safe Drive, Stay Alive, which was an 
educational event for new drivers on 1st November 2016 at the Capitol. 

The Community Safety Manager presented the final action plan on 
Vulnerable Victims priority on behalf of the Sussex Police. The outcome of 
this priority was “to engage with vulnerable persons in the community in 
order to prevent crime and provide support”. 

There was a growing ageing population in the District and there had also 
been a shift in crime types over recent years i.e. online and telephone 
scams, child exploitation, therefore leading to a growing need to support 
vulnerable people in the community i.e. older persons, disabled people 
and younger persons. 

The action group had been working with carers and care homes as they 
were often closest to vulnerable people. Lots of work was also going on 
with private companies and voluntary organisations. 

Members questioned whether there were any statistics on online crime in 
the District. The Community Safety Manager would endeavour to get hold 
of the statistics for Members. 

A resolution centre was now in place which provided a response to reports 
of online crime. 

An objective of this action group was to communicate information to 
vulnerable people on how to report and recognise crime.

The Chairman of the Working Group thanked the officers for their 
presentations and for the information they had provided on what was 
happening in the District under the Community Safety Partnership. 

7. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 

The Scrutiny and Committee Support Officer would arrange the next 
meeting for November/December 2016, to review progress of the action 
plans half way through the Partnership’s delivery year. 

Page 67



Agenda Item 7
Crime and Disorder Working Group

18th April 2016 

68

The meeting finished at 6.27 p.m. having commenced at 5.30 p.m.

CHAIRMAN

Page 68



Agenda Item 10
Health Provision Working Group

  30th March 2016 

69

Notes of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee
Health Provision Working Group

30th March 2016 2016 

Present: Councillors: Liz Kitchen, Tim Lloyd, Tricia Youtan 

Apologies: Councillors: David Skipp (Chairman)

Also present: Councillors: Toni Bradnum, Leonard Crosbie, Kate Rowbottom 

1. TO APPROVE AS CORRECT THE RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD
ON 25TH JANUARY 2016 

The notes of the meeting held 25th January 2016 were approved as a 
correct record. 

2. TO RECEIVE ANY DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

In the absence of the Chairman, the Councillor Crosbie agreed to chair the 
meeting, as Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee. .

4. TO HEAR FROM SOUTH EAST COAST AMBULANCE SERVICE ON 
AMBULANCE RESPONSE TIMES IN THE DISTRICT

Ben Banfield, Account Manager for Sussex, Peter Radoux, Operating 
Manager for the North of Sussex and Rory Collinge, Contracts Manager, 
all from South East Coast Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 
(SECAMB), attended the meeting of the Working Group to respond to 
concerns raised by the Members surrounding ambulance response times 
in the Horsham District, especially in the rural areas. 

A PowerPoint presentation was given to Members which provided the 
Group with information about the 999 service in general and response 
times. 

Members were concerned about Horsham’s response time; only 53% of 
calls were responded to within the target of 8 minutes. However, the 
Group was informed that the average response time for Red 1 calls: 
immediately life threatening and Red 2 calls: very urgent – potentially life 
threatening was in fact 8 minutes and 17 seconds. The reasons for this 

Page 69

Agenda Item 10



Agenda Item 10
Health Provision Working Group

  30th March 2016 

70

were the rurality of the District and also that it was the only despatch desk 
which didn’t have its own Accident and Emergency for the area. 

Ambulances were placed in areas that historically and statistically the 
emergency calls were expected to come from. In Horsham 50% of calls 
were from urban areas and 50% from the rural areas, compared to 
Brighton were the population was dense and mainly urban, 85% of calls 
were responded to within the target time. Therefore the main variance in 
response times was attributed to the location. 

Members noted that it was rare to have ambulances located at their base 
between calls, normally they would be out on the road and SECAMB 
examined historical data to predict where the next call might come from 
and then would place the ambulance in that area. However, ambulances 
would normally go from one call to another, as a result of the high volume 
of calls. 

The Group questioned where patients would be taken once collected by 
the ambulance. Members noted that the ambulance crew or critical care 
paramedic would make a decision on which hospital to take the patient to 
based on the nature of the injury. Accidents which were high priority or 
major trauma would be taken to a major trauma centre. The ambulance 
crew could notify the hospitals in advance that they would be arriving with 
a patient. There were many levels of communication between the 
ambulance crews and the hospitals to ensure that the patient was taken to 
the nearest and most suitable hospital best equipped to deal with the 
problem. 

The Working Group also noted that there were also community first 
responders who were volunteers and could be despatched to the respond 
to the call whilst the patient was waiting for the ambulance if they had 
access to the defibrillator and a first aid kit. First responders were included 
in the response targets. 

There was not considered to be any clinical impact or harm associated 
with slightly longer response times in terms of patient care, what was 
important was to get reasonable care in a good time. As long as the 
patient received the care in the crucial time, this was considered the main 
factor. 

The targets often did not reflect the outcome of the treatment which was a 
far more important factor, for example getting to a patient in 7 minutes and 
59 seconds was considered a success, even if the patient could not be 
saved, under the current targets, whereas getting to a patient in 10 
minutes would be considered a failure, despite the fact that the patient 
was treated and had survived. Later in 2016 the targets would be 

Page 70



Agenda Item 10
Health Provision Working Group

  30th March 2016 

71

changing nationally to measure and monitor ambulance response times 
more accurately.  

The Working Group questioned the impact of the closure of the ambulance 
station in Hurst Road on the ambulance service. Members were informed 
that ambulances would continue to respond from the Hurst Road site 
however, under the new proposals there would be less ambulance 
stations, instead there would be one central reporting hub located near 
Gatwick, from which all shifts would commence from, all vehicles would be 
fully prepared for the shift, i.e. cleaned, maintained and equipped, then 
sent to different deployment sites. Previously the paramedics would do 
this role at the beginning of their shift. 

A community response post would remain at the Hurst Road site in 
Horsham so that SECAMB could still respond from that location, but the 
garage and full ambulance station would no longer be required. This would 
allow for the potential to have more community response posts in 
Horsham in the future. 

The Working Group also questioned the impact of non-emergency 
transport for Sussex no longer being provided by SECAMB, it was 
suggested that once the changes had taken place the Working Group 
could invite the CCG leading the process, to come and talk to Members 
about the changes to the service. 

The Members thanked SECAMB for the presentation and the presentation 
slides would be circulated to the Group. 

The meeting finished at 4.33 p.m. having commenced at 3.00 p.m.

            CHAIRMAN

Page 71



Agenda Item 10
Health Provision Working Group

  30th March 2016 

72Page 72



Agenda Item 13
Scrutiny and Overview Work Programme 

January 2016 to January 2017

73

Scrutiny & 
Overview 

Social Inclusion Finance & 
Performance

Business 
Improvement 

Crime & Disorder Health Provision West Sussex 
Joint Scrutiny 
Group 

Temporary 
Working Groups

January Meeting Additional 
Meeting

-S106 Review
-Normal business
-Q RIPA Update

Local Health 
Provision in the 
Town Centre

Joint Scrutiny 
Steering Group – 

To agree work 
programme 

February Meeting 

Q KPI Report 

Q Complaints 
Report  

Q FOI Report 

CenSus Mins

Additional 
Meeting

-S106 Review

Meeting (TBC)

Housing Provision 
for Care Leavers 
Review Group

March Meeting 

Work 
Programming

Procedure note on 
planning appeals 
(TBC)

Digital Inclusion Meeting Additional 
Meeting

-S106 Review

Local Health 
Provision in the 
Town Centre

April Meeting 

-S106 Review
-Normal Business
-Q RIPA Update

Meeting

Update on action 
plans at year end 

Further meeting 
dates TBC

HDC Affordable 
Housing Stock 
(tbc)

May Meeting 

S106 Report from 
BIWG (TBC)

Annual Report 
June Meeting Meeting Meeting Review of 

Constitution (TBC)

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 12



Agenda Item 13
Scrutiny and Overview Work Programme 

January 2016 to January 2017

74

Report back on 
recommendation 
re planning 
appeals (see 
minutes from 
11/1/16) 6 months 
on

Q KPI Report 

Q Complaints 
Report  

Q FOI Report 

CenSus Mins

** Council 
Property update 
Brian Elliott 

Monitoring of 
CenSus Housing 
Benefit Subsidy 
Audit 

July Meeting Meeting 
-Q RIPA Update 

August Meeting

Q KPI Report 

Q Complaints 
Report  

Q FOI Report 

CenSus Mins

September Meeting 

Boundary 
Commission 
Review 
(timescales TBC)

Meeting 

October Meeting Meeting 

-Annual RIPA 
Report 

P
age 74



Agenda Item 13
Scrutiny and Overview Work Programme 

January 2016 to January 2017

75

November Meeting

Trade Waste WG 
update on report 
recs see mins of 
S&O 9/11/15

Meeting (TBC)

December 
January 2017
February 
March
April 12 month follow 

up on s106 review 
by BIWG see SO 
minutes 14/03/16

P
age 75



Agenda Item 13
Scrutiny and Overview Work Programme 

January 2016 to January 2017

76

P
age 76



Scrutiny & Overview 
Annual Report 2015/16

May 2016

Page 77

Agenda Item 13



Contents

Introduction by the Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee  ...... 3

What is Scrutiny and Overview?.................................................................... 4

What has Scrutiny achieved over the past 12 months? ................................ 5

The Scrutiny Working Groups ....................................................................... 7

Temporary working groups .......................................................................... 10

Updates on previous reviews ...................................................................... 10

Future work and how to get involved ........................................................... 10

Contact details ..............................................................................................11

Suggestion form .......................................................................................... 12

Page 78



 Introduction by the Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee

This Annual Report of the Scrutiny &Overview 
Committee confirms the work that the 
Councillors on the Committee were involved 
with and focused on, in the Working Groups of 
Scrutiny, which produced a range of results and 
recommendations during the year. In addition 
the guidance, experience and focus of the 
Chairmen of the Working Groups, who played 
a pivotal role in achieving engagement and 
outcomes for Scrutiny. (N.B Nine Councillors of 
the Committee’s 15 members were newly elected 
in 2015).

The work of Scrutiny has included:
• Review of the Planning Appeals process: new 

policy and procedure
• Review of the 106 Process
• Review of Property/Asset management
• Review of work of Community Safety 

Partnership
• Improving Council financial information by 

presenting an ongoing Balance Sheet at 
quarterly meetings

• Improving payment system of Claimants’ 
Benefits to reduce/eliminate penalties paid by 
Horsham District Council (and other Census 
partners) to the DWP

• Review the provisions for local residents 
suffering financial hardship

• Ensuring that local residents have easily 
accessible communications links to Horsham 
District Council given the Council’s digital 
agenda

• Engagement and discussions with the NHS 
providers of Primary care (e.g., surgeries) 
to ensure adequate capacity to meet the 
health needs of the ever increasing Horsham 
population arising from current and future 
house building.

Also, I and the Vice Chairman have been involved 
in both a review of the future Governance of 
the Council plus discussions on a review of 
the Scrutiny and Overview process seeking 
possible areas of improvement in the work of the 
Committee in 2016/17. 

It has been a privilege and a pleasure to work 
with Councillors and Officers seeking to ensure 
a more effective and engaged Council for the 
benefit of the residents of Horsham and District.

Councillor Leonard Crosbie
Chairman of Scrutiny & Overview Committee

April 2016

3

Page 79



What is Scrutiny and Overview?

Since the Scrutiny and Overview Committee was 
introduced in Horsham District Council in 2001 it 
has provided the Council with its own ‘watchdog’ 
or ‘critical friend’. 

Scrutiny and Overview is a common sense 
approach to reviewing decisions and policies and 
considering whether they are right for the District, 
ensuring that Horsham District Council remains 
effective and accountable. 

One of its principal purposes is to improve the 
decision-making process and to make it clear and 
accessible. It does this by:

•	 Reviewing and developing policy 
recommendations for the Cabinet’s 
consideration

•	 Providing a means to review the Council’s 
own achievements against its planned targets

•	 Setting out to influence Council/Cabinet 
decisions and policies

•	 Playing a part in the community leadership 
role of the Council i.e. by reviewing services 
provided by other organisations on issues that 
affect the public and by calling individuals/
organisations to account

•	 Contributing to democracy by stimulating 
public engagement

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee’s terms of 
reference are:  
•	 To assist in the strategic development of 

policy 
•	 To review issues of local concern 
•	 To review the policy of others within and 

outside the Council 
•	 To call in Cabinet decisions 
•	 To scrutinise the Council’s decision-making 

processes 
•	 To monitor the internal and external delivery of 

services 
•	 To review specific services 
•	 To monitor and scrutinise the activities of 

outside bodies 

4

Page 80



SCRUTINY & 
OVERVIEW 

COMMITTEE

RECOMMENDATIONS

COUNCIL
The Council has the final say for these 
functions.  Both Cabinet and Scrutiny 
& Overview Committee must make 
recommendations to Council. CABINET

Makes decisions in line with Council’s 
Policy Framework & Budget

Structure of the Scrutiny and 
Overview Committee and its 
Working Groups  

Membership of the Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee:

Councillor Leonard Crosbie (Chairman)

Councillor David Coldwell (Vice Chairman)

Councillors: Alan Britten, John Chidlow, Paul 
Clarke, Roger Clarke, Jonathan Dancer, Matthew 
French, Tony Hogben, Nigel Jupp, Tim Lloyd, 
Brian O’Connell, David Skipp, Ben Staines, 
Michael Willett

How the Scrutiny and Overview 
function has developed over the 
past 12 months

Councillor Leonard Crosbie was elected 
as Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee for 2015/16. With many years of 
experience as both a Member of the Committee 
and also as a Chairman of the Finance and 
Performance Working Group, Councillor Crosbie 
was considered well qualified for the position of 
Chairman of the Committee. 

The Committee continues to meet approximately 
every six weeks over the course of the Council 
year and the working groups also meet on a 

5

Business 
Improvement

Working 
Group 

STANDING

Crime & 
Disorder
Working 
Group 

STANDING

Finance & 
Performance

Working 
Group 

STANDING

Social 
Inclusion 
Working 
Group 

STANDING

Health 
Provision
Working 
Group 

SHORT TERM

Page 81



regular basis. There have been changes to all the 
working group memberships this year and new 
chairmen have been appointed. There have also 
been changes to the way information is received 
and considered by the working groups to ensure 
a smooth and streamlined process. 

The Council’s Director of Corporate Resources 
continues to act as a Scrutiny Champion, with a 
dedicated Scrutiny Support Officer and assistance 
from other members of the Democratic Services 
team.

Scrutiny has undertaken a number of significant 
reviews over the past 12 months, such as, a 
review of local residents suffering financial 
hardship, a review of digital inclusion and a 
review of the health provision in the District 
arising from the growing population. A review of 
the entire Section 106 process also continues. 

The Council’s Budget, District Plan and Key 
Performance Indicators are continuously 
reviewed. 

There have been some excellent 
recommendations arising from the working groups 
which have led to positive changes, such as to 
the Council’s Constitution in relation to planning 
appeals. 

The Committee continues to ensure that 
any recommendations are not lost and that 
the close monitoring of the outcome of any 
recommendation is ongoing. 

Council officers, Sussex Police, local GPs, South 
East Coast Ambulance Service and organisations 
such as the Samaritans and Citizens Advice 
Bureau are just some of the people who have 
been involved with the various reviews over the 
past 12 months.  

We have welcomed a number of new Councillors 
to Scrutiny and Overview this year, following the 
elections in May 2015, who have brought new 
qualities and fresh ideas to the scrutiny process. 
Along with our experienced Members, the 
function continues to remain strong and critically 
examine the decisions and functions of the 
Council, holding the Cabinet to account.   

Joint Scrutiny arrangements across 
West Sussex 

Joint scrutiny arrangements in West Sussex have 
been well established for some years now. The 
West Sussex Joint Scrutiny Steering Group was 
set up in 2010 and enables the County Council 
and district and borough councils to work together 
to draw up a work programme to scrutinise 
specific topics of common interest. The Joint 
Scrutiny Steering Group meets approximately 
twice a year. The Chairman of Horsham District 
Council’s Scrutiny and Overview Committee 
attends those meetings. 
Joint Scrutiny reviews so far have been of the 
Community Legal Advice Services Contract and 
Flooding.

The first meeting of the New Year was in January 
2016, at which the Group met to discuss some 
potential joint scrutiny topics and the Steering 
Group agreed to establish a Joint Scrutiny Task 
and Finish Working Group to consider the review 
of the Housing Care Provision for Care Leavers. 
The review started in February and would help 
the Councils to better understand the housing 
needs of care leavers and to ensure that new 
procedures for co-working are improved. 

Councillor Alan Britten represents Horsham on 
the current Task and Finish Group and provides 
updates at the Scrutiny and Overview Committee 
meetings. Following the first meeting he explained 
that Ofsted had highlighted many areas which 

6

Page 82



required improvement in relation to the education 
and housing provision, for care leavers. The 
service was considered to have deteriorated. The 
Group would be looking into whether there was 
adequate support for young people leaving care. 
At the second meeting the Group heard from a 
number of key officers involved with housing care 
leavers from West Sussex County Council, along 
with three care leavers themselves who gave 
the Group a better understanding of the current 
situation. 

The review was due to be completed by the end 
of April and although it was in the early stages at 
the point of writing this report but the full outcome 
would be presented to the Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee. 

Horsham District Council is committed to 
participating in the joint scrutiny work. 

Scrutiny Working Groups 

There are four permanent Scrutiny Working 
Groups which monitor and review different 
aspects of the Council’s business.
 
Business Improvement Working 
Group

Chairman: Councillor Brian O’Connell

The Business Improvement Working Group 
is responsible for scrutinising the Council’s 
business improvement proposals and encourage 
consideration of best practice. It reports to the 
Scrutiny and Overview Committee in terms of 
its reviews into benefits, effect on services, risk 
and progress, and investigates matters related to 
operational effectiveness. 

One major review of the Business Improvement 
Working Group over the year was that of 
the planning appeal process – policy and 

procedure. The Working Group was concerned 
about the costs incurred by the Council over 
the recent years following decisions made by 
the Development Control Committees. The 
Working Group looked towards avoiding these 
costs in the future and as a result of the review, 
made a recommendation to the Scrutiny and 
Overview Committee in November 2015 which 
was then recommended to full Council. The 
recommendation was to revise the Council’s 
Constitution so that when a decision was being 
made at a Development Control meeting, if the 
Committee appeared to be leaning towards 
a decision which is contrary to the planning 
officers’ recommendation, and it would appear 
that substantial costs could be incurred if the 
application went to appeal, the case would be 
deferred for determination by full Council.

This recommendation was accepted by Council in 
December 2015 and a change to the Constitution 
was made. 

The Business Improvement Working Group 
also commenced an entire review of the S106 
process; this was an independent review 
with its own terms of reference which included 
establishing and clarifying the existing process, 
review of the monitoring process, the changes 
to the process following the introduction of CIL. 
The review was due to finish in May 2016 and the 
Working Group would present its final report and 
a number of recommendations to the Scrutiny and 
Overview Committee. 

Other reviews of this Working Group included 
updates on the Business Transformation 
programme – the Working Group continues 
to monitor the progress of the programme into 
2015/16, Property and Asset Management 
review – and the performance of the department 
following the implementation of the new structure. 

7

Page 83



Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
(RIPA) – this continues to be a standing item for 
the Business Improvement Working Group; it is 
responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the 
RIPA Policy on an annual basis and now, also 
new this year, the usage on a quarterly basis. 

Crime and Disorder Working Group

Chairman: Councillor Roger Clarke 

This working group was established in 2013 
following a decision that every local authority was 
required to have a committee with the power to 
review and scrutinise the functioning of the local 
Community Safety Partnership. The legislation 
forms part of the Government’s commitment to 
strengthen the accountability of local Community 
Safety Partnerships and enhance the role of local 
councillors and local communities in preventing 
and reducing crime. 

The Working Group scrutinises the work of the 
Horsham District Community Safety Partnership 
(CSP) and the partners who comprise it. It does 
this by receiving reports twice a year on the 
progress of the Partnerships’ action plans, under 
the CSP’s three priorities, mid-way through and at 
the end of the partnership’s delivery year. 

The three priorities of the Community Safety 
Partnership are: 
Alcohol and Drugs – aiming to reduce the harm 
caused by drugs and alcohol to individuals, 
families and the Horsham District Community 
Vulnerable Victims – under which the Police 
engage with the vulnerable victims in the 
community in order to prevent crime and provide 
support
Casualty Reduction – the objective is to reduce 
the number of those killed or seriously injured on 
the roads in the District. 

Officers from the Council along with 
representatives from Sussex Police and West 
Sussex Fire and Rescue Service attend the 
Working Group meetings to provide updates on 
what actions are taking place under each of the 
priorities and progress that is being made.   

The Working Group has been very impressed with 
the work of the Community Safety Partnership 
and arranged for a presentation to take place for 
all Councillors demonstrating the work that they 
have achieved over the past 12 months. 

Finance and Performance Working 
Group

Chairman: Councillor Stuart Ritchie

The Finance and Performance Working Group 
saw some changes to the way it operates in 
2015, following the election of a new Chairman. 
The format in which the Working Group reviews 
its information has been streamlined to give a far 
more effective system. 

The Finance and Performance Working Group 
has been established since the Budget Review 
and the Performance Management Working 
Groups merged in 2012. The Group scrutinises 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy and 
receives regular budget reports and it reviews the 
Council’s performance against the District Plan 
Priorities and Key Performance Indicators 
through the Council year. Highlighting areas of 
excellence or concerns, which it may do further 
review of.  

Further reports are often requested on areas of 
concern regarding service performance or budget 
overspend / underspend, by calling for further 
information from the Cabinet Member and his 
portfolio area. 

8

Page 84



The Working Group has recently raised the issue 
of improving the payment system of claimants’ 
benefits in order to reduce the penalties paid 
by Horsham District Council (and the other 
CenSus partners) to the Department of Work and 
Pensions. Following discussions with Mid Sussex 
District Council, the lead Council in the CenSus 
partnership, the situation will be monitored on an 
ongoing basis.  

As part of the Working Group’s remit, it also 
receives quarterly reports on the Council’s 
complaints, compliments and suggestions, 
and biannual reports on Freedom of Information 
requests made to the Council. 

The Working Group continues to meet quarterly 
but can increase meeting frequency at the time of 
the Budget. 

Social Inclusion Working Group

Chairman: Councillor David Skipp  

The Social Inclusion Working Group does 
excellent work reviewing and making 
recommendations on initiatives to develop and 
enrich the Council’s approach to social inclusion, 
equality and diversity, access to services and 
supporting vulnerable people, anti-poverty 
initiatives, and relevant health matters. 

The Working Group commenced the year by 
considering how the Cabinet had responded to 
the Group’s earlier report and recommendations 
on the review of the effectiveness of the 
provision for local residents suffering 
financial hardship. This comprehensive review 
involved a number of representatives from key 
organisations who shared information on the 
support they offered to those in financial hardship. 
Attendees included Horsham Churches Together, 
who operated a night shelter over the winter 
months, as well as running a foodbank, Horsham 

Debt Advice Service, the Samaritans and Citizens 
Advice Bureau. They provided information on the 
services they offer, for example appointments or 
drop-in sessions, or telephone services to discuss 
those with financial problems, debt issues or help 
those with emotional problems resulting from 
financial hardship.  

Arising from this review a number of 
recommendations were made to the Scrutiny and 
Overview Committee in March 2015, these were 
accepted and recommended on to the Cabinet. 
The Group then received the Cabinet’s responses 
in September. 

Arising from the first review, the Social Inclusion 
Working Group decided to review Digital 
Inclusion, following one of the recommendations 
to consider the provision of the Council’s online 
communications and services for local residents 
who do not have access to the internet. The 
Community Development and Engagement 
Manager was involved in the review and the 
Group discussed the importance of writing a 
Digital Inclusion Strategy which would outline 
the Council’s commitment to ensuring that 
residents in the District could access the online 
services provided by the Council. The Leader 
of the Council and the Business Transformation 
Manager were invited to discuss the inclusion of a 
strategy in the forthcoming Corporate Plan. 

One significant change made during the digital 
inclusion review was the change to the Council’s 
website, to improve links to the accessibility 
information on the website, which now can be 
accessed from one click from the Home page, a 
small change with a significant impact. 

9

Page 85



Temporary Working Groups

Health Provision 

Chairman: Councillor David Skipp 

The Health Provision Working Group was 
established to consider the present health 
provision at Horsham Hospital including acute 
services, outpatient services and inpatient 
facilities, access to services at the hospital, future 
plans by the local Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) and NHS Trusts for the use of Horsham 
Hospital and the benefits of these plans to the 
residents of the District, and the future role of the 
hospital. 
However its work has been ongoing, it continues 
to meet to consider the health provision across 
the District as the population increases. 

The Group recently invited two GPs from two of 
the fundamental town centre surgeries – Orchard 
Surgery and Riverside Surgery, to hear their 
views on the health provision going forward and 
the plans for their surgeries. 
The GPs explained how they could merge 
together in order to provide an increased 
service, i.e. longer surgery hours and weekend 
appointments and potentially increase patient 
capacity but remaining in the same location, 
which was what their patients wanted. 

The Working Group also received a presentation 
from South East Coast Ambulance Service 
following concerns over the ambulance response 
times in the District, especially in the rural areas. 

Although this Group is temporary, it is ongoing.   

Updates on previous reviews 

Trade Waste

In April 2014 the Trade Waste Working Group 

made a report and a number of recommendations 
following the review into the collection and 
disposal of trade waste and recycling collection 
service. 

In November 2015 the Trade Recycling and 
Waste Services Manager provided an update for 
the Committee on each of the recommendations 
which were made in the report approximately one 
year on. The Council continues to offer a trade 
waste collection service in the District as there 
continues to be a demand from small shops and 
businesses. Also provided as part of the update 
was a Trade Refuse and Recycling Marketing 
and Communications Plan proposing a marketing 
communications plan for the trade refuse and 
recycling service which would aim to increase 
customer numbers and market share of trade 
refuse collections and improve the recyclate 
quality. 

The Committee requested that in approximately 
12 months’ time an update on the position be 
provided including the success of the service. 
Therefore in November 2016, the Committee 
would aim to receive a further report on trade 
waste and decide how to proceed from there.

Future work and how to get involved

Future reviews of the Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee are set to include: a Boundary 
Review: a review of the number of Councillors 
representing the District and the ward boundaries. 
This was due to commence in the summer of 
2016. 

A review of the Council’s Constitution: the 
current Constitution was considered in need 
of revision, especially following the recent 
Governance Review carried out by the Council. 
Many areas of the Constitution had not been 
reviewed for a number of years and were in need 
of updating to develop it into a more modern, 

10

Page 86



agile, flexible and well understood document. This 
would also take place in the summer. 
  
At a recent meeting of the Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee the Chairman suggested that a review 
of Parking Services be undertaken. As a result of 
all the additional housing in the District there was 
concern amongst the Committee that this would 
lead to an increase in car ownership and that there 
was no provision for an increase in parking in the 
town centre. Therefore a report was requested 
from the Cabinet Member and the Committee may 
decide to review this area later in 2016.

Scrutiny Training at Horsham 
District Council 

On 1 July 2015 a Scrutiny Induction training 
session was provided by Tim Young, an 
experienced scrutiny trainer, who has worked with 
Horsham councillors before on scrutiny as well as 
other councillors and officers across the country 
on a number of local government aspects. 

The training session was set up to help provide 
some understanding for new Members of the 
Scrutiny and Overview Committee and also to 
help existing Members build on their knowledge. 
It provided information on how Scrutiny and 
Overview fitted into Horsham District Council’s 
governance structure, effective scrutiny, the 
role of scrutiny, getting the best results, work 
programming and much more. 

Members who attended the session provided 
extremely positive feedback, overall the training 
proved was considered very useful. Potential 
training options for the future are currently being 
explored. 

Review of Scrutiny 

A Governance Project Manager was appointed 
temporarily and amongst other things has carried 

out a review of the Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee and process at Horsham, he met with 
the Chairman and the Scrutiny and Committee 
Support Officer to examine how Scrutiny currently 
works and whether there were any areas for 
improvement. Areas such as work programming, 
holding Cabinet to account, engagement with the 
forward plan, effective use of the Committee and 
the working groups were discussed in detail and 
the outcome was positive. 

Members supported the suggestions that would 
enhance and strengthen the role of Scrutiny at 
Horsham.

Getting Involved

Horsham District Council welcomes contributions 
to the Scrutiny process and wishes to encourage 
people to make suggestions for the work 
programme, to attend meetings or to ask questions. 

Please contact the Scrutiny and Committee 
Support Officer or complete and return the 
attached suggestion form.

For further information please see the Scrutiny 
pages on the Council’s website: https://
www.horsham.gov.uk/councilanddemocracy/
councillors/scrutiny-and-overview-committee

Contact Details

Scrutiny and Committee Support Officer
Horsham District Council
Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, 
West Sussex 
RH12 1RL
Telephone: 01403 215138
Email: scrutiny@horsham.gov.uk
Website: http://www.horsham.gov.uk/council/
members/scrutiny-overview.aspx

11

Page 87



Your Name: .......................................................................  Contact No: ..................................................

Proposed scope/focus of review:

Your rationale for selection:

Evidence:

Desired outcomes/objectives/possible terms of reference:

Other comments:

Would you be interested in being a co-opted member    yes/no*
Would you be interested in providing evidence to the Group   yes/no*
* Please delete as applicable

What time scale do you perceive to be necessary for this review?

Urgent   Within six months     Within 6-12 months

WORK PROGRAMME SUGGESTION FORM

Please return this form to:  Scrutiny & Committee Support Officer,
    Horsham District Council, 
    Parkside, Chart Way,
    Horsham, RH12 1RL

12

Ref: 16/Cllr

Page 88


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 To receive any replies from Cabinet/Council regarding Scrutiny and Overview recommendations
	6 Business Improvement Working Group
	S106 Review Appendix 1
	S106 Review Appendix 2
	Notes of the meeting held 12th April 2016

	7 Crime and Disorder Working Group
	10 Health Provision Working Group
	12 To receive any suggestions for the Scrutiny and Overview work programme
	13 Scrutiny and Overview Annual Report 2015/16

